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1 1 4 OPTION VALUATION ' ' '-•-

The lognomial stock price distribution implies that the variance over any 
given time period is proportional to its length. Therefore, one method of com­
puting the (constant) future instantaneous variance (c^) is to simply rely on past 
stock return data; that is, to assume that this past variability of the stock's retums 
is indeed invariant across time. 

THE HISTORICAL VARIANCE OF STOCK RETURNS. To compute the historical 
variance of stock retums, we first need a time series of price data on the stock to 
compute its continuously compounded rates of return (equal to the logarithms of 
the stock price relatives). Suppose that we have 16 weekly price observations on 
stock ABC. 

Weftk# 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 

Price 

51.0 
50.5 
52,0 
51.7 
51.2 
50.6 
50.1 
50.3 

ln(V5f-i) 

-0,0098 
0.0290 

-0.0050 
-0.0097 
-0.0117 
-0.0099 

0.0040 

Week# 

9 
10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 

Price 

5J.1 
49,3 
49.8 
51,5 
52,1 
52,5 
51.9 
50,3 

in(SA/-l) 

0,0157 
-0,0358 

0.0100 
0.0034 
0,0116 
0,0076 

-0,0115 
-0,0310 

We can then estimate the mean of the series of continuously compounded 
rates of retum: 

n ^ , ' 
(5.3) 

where 

A — mean of the continuously compounded rates of return in 
the sample 

R-̂  — ln(5';/5'j_i) — the continuously compounded rate of return over week;, 
;• = 1 , . . . , t t 

n = total number of available continuously compounded rates 
of retum 

Hence, in our example, the mean weekly rate of return equals 

A - T ^ X ^ V - -0,00287 15 i = \ 
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any 

^past 
jurns 

We can then calculate the variance of the historical weekly returns around 
their mean given that the unbiased estimator of the variance is equal to^ 

<r - ^ ^ Z t ' ^ y - A T 
n ~ 1 

(5,4) 
j = 

The unbiased estimator of the variance of the weekly returns in our example is 
then equal to 

15 

^^ = — ^ [ f t j - (-0,00287)]^ = 0,0002934 
14 

aed 

Now, to infer the proper variance parameter o"̂  that enters the Black and 
Scholes formula, we must remember to annualize the estimated weekly historical 
variance o"̂ , hence 

0-2 = 52.^^ =0,01526 

Finally, the annualized standard deviation cr is equal to 

(T = V = yo,01526 = 12.35% 

Assuming that the standard deviation (or the variance) of stock ABC's returns 
will indeed remain constant over lime and equal to 12,35% (or 0.01526) per year, 
we can then use it in conjunction with the Black and Scholes pricing formula 
to compute the theoretical prices of European options—of any maturity and/or 
exercise price—written on stock ABC. 

|5.3) 

iim m 

ekj, 

I rates 

^ Note that the variance of a sample: (7^ = ( l / ' i )Sy = i [/̂ ; - A] is biased. This means that its 
expected value wi!i differ from the true value of the population's variance {<r̂ ): 

£K) = J;£fK;-^l] 
y - i 

= ' X^K^; - y.)^-{p.- p.)̂  

= -(no-g - cr^) 

y = i 

where fl = sample mean, fx ^ population's true mean and varf/i] = a^/n. 
Hence, an unbiased estimator ofthe variance {&-) is obtained by multiplying D-J with the 

correction factor n/{ii - 1), so ihal we obtain 

n - ! -1 = r S ^ y A ] ^ - — T Z I ^ . - A J ,-, 12 

y - 1 
l l ' 1 

i = i 
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Of course, the number of stock prices (and continuously compounded rates 
of return) should in practice be greater'' than 16 (15) to get a reliable estimate 
of the variance. Generally, one would rely on one year of weekly data (or 52 
price observations) to compute the historical variance. However, going so far into 
the past may be very misleading for some cyclical or growth stocks since their 
current characteristics (profit level, leverage, management policy, etc.) can vary 
substantially from what they were twelve months ago. Even for very stable stocks, 
this procedure can be criticized since a long time span increases the probability 
of general shifts in the economy and hence of systematically induced changes in 
the stock's return variability, If we use more closely spaced data—for example, 
daily stock prices—we can certainly minimize the problem caused by too distant 
price observations while keeping a sufficient number of observations to estimate 
the variance accurately. 

Using 52 daily price observations would only lead us one month and 22 
days into the past and we may expect that such a recently computed historical 
volatility will be more appropriate to price options, However, we still must assume 
that the economy changes slowly over time, assuming that this recent but never­
theless historical estimate of stock returns' volatility can adequately approximate 
the unknown future volatility over the option's remaining time to niaturity, 

Parkinson's (1980) "extreme values" variance measurement procedure is a 
second method used to obtain variance estimates based on recent past market data. 
Assuming that stock prices are lognormally distributed, he suggested estimating 
the variance with high and low daily prices rather than wilh closing prices. He 
defined tbe following formula lo compute the variance from daily high- and low-
price relatives^ 

' In this example, we essentially emphasize the technique that should be used to compute the variance 
of the conlinuousiy compounded rates of retum. In practice, the choice of the relevant sample size 
ill) is very delknte since wc need a lot of observations (large n) to compute a cousisient estinLitor 
of the vaiiance while, paradoxically, going too far in the past decreases the extrnpolative power of 
the estimated historical variance. For many highly liquid stocks, this problem can be partially solved 
by relying on more frequently spaced data and typically on daily stock prices. Note that for cunency 
options, some studies have even relied on intra-daiiy data to estimate the variance of the exchange 
rate relative changes [see Wasserfallen and Zimmerman (1986)], 

^ If p(l, t) is defined as the probabiiicy (hat (.̂ mas - ^nim) ^ ^ during a time interval f where K is 
a variabJe following a continuou.s-timc random walk, then Parkinson has shown 

Hence over a unit time interval, we have 

a^ - 0.36I£[/^] 

Over n unit time intervals we obtain 

; = ( 
This corresponds exactly lo Eq. (5,5) with 

/ - ln(5w/Si;) 

^f'-'-' 
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(^HL = 
0.361 

^ H S H J / S L J ) ^ 

; = i 

(5.5) 

where 

crjjî  = Estimated variance from daily high and low prices 

n = Total number of days in the sample 

SHJ = Highest quoted price of the stock on day j 

Sij - Lowest quoted price of the stock on day J 

This method requires even less data than the daily closing prices based 
variance since each continuously compounded rate of return now relies on data 
occurring within the same day and not within two consecutive days. Hence, 
Parkinson proves that this method is more efficient, providing the same accuracy 
as the variance estimated from daily closing prices while requiTing only a fifth of 
the data. Instead of using, for example, 60 daily closing prices, we can compute 
a historical estimate of the variance with the 12 most recent daily high and low 
prices with the same level of accuracy. 

As pointed out by Cox and Rubinstein (1985), this method is very sensitive 
to errors in data reporting, which can lead us to compute the variance from 
erroneous high and low daily prices. Since the method does nol necessarily rely 
on a large number of price observations, such reporting errors can severely bias 
the estimated historical variance. Also, the Parkinson's extreme values method for 
option pricing cannot be broadly recommended due to the absence of empirical 
evidence establishing its accuracy of variance esdmates and due to the limited 
number of stock exchanges that report the highest and the lowest daily stock prices, 

THE IMPLIED STANDARD DEVIATION METHOD. An even more ambitious 
attempt toward "refreshing" the variance estimation is provided by the implied 
standard deviation (ISD) method that estimates the stock returns' variability from 
the most recent available market data, namely current market prices. The concept 
is original and appealing since it tries to estimate the variance of stock returns 
implicitly reflected in current option prices. 

Take a careful look at the Black and Scholes European call pricing formula: 

where 

C = SN(d^)-Ke~'-^N{d2) 

HS/Ke-' '^) 1 

do — d\ - <T 

(4.18) 
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By observing the current cal] option's price in cojijunction with the stock 
price, exercise price, time to maturity of the option, and riskless interest rate, 
we can "invert" the formula to obtain the stock return's standard deviation im­
plied in the observed call price. This method, originally proposed by Latane and 
Rendleman (1976), estimates the implied standard deviation by an iterative search 
procedure, which, given a starting value for a , subsequently attempts to minimize 
the difference between the observed call option's price and its computed Black 
and Scholes value, ^ 

The major difficulty, however, consists of interpreting the ISD derived from 
several options"^ written on the same stock since these standard deviations will 
generally not be equal. Of course, some differences may arise from the non-
simultaneity in the various option and stock prices used to compute the implied 
standard deviations, others arise from the different nature of the options' closing 
prices (some may be quoted at the bid and others at the ask price). More disturbing 
is the often perceived pattern in the ISD's according to the options' time to maturity 
since it suggests that the stock returns' variance is not constant and that it has 
some degree of time-dependence, which we shall investigate in more detail in the 
next chapter. 

To overcome the problems related to the non-uniqueness of the stock vari­
ance estimate, several authors have recommended using a weighting scheme thai 
aggregates the implied standard deviations into a unique estimate for any particular 
observation date. The simplest weighting scheme consists of taking the arithmetic 
average of all the implied standard deviations to obtain a unique estimate & of 
the stock's future volatility: 

o-/ (5.6) 

where 

(Tj = implied volatility computed from the market price of option i, 
i = 1, 2 , . . . , / 

& = average implied standard deviation of stock retums. 

A more sophisticated approach, suggested by Chiras and Manaster (1978), 
weights each option's ISD according to its degree of price elasticity with respect 

^ Generally the numerical computation of the implied standard deviation relies on a Newtoii-Raphson 
approximation technique, 
"̂  Note that using Ihe Black and Scholes equation for put prices [see Eq, (4.22)1, we can also 
compute the implied standard deviations froiij European put prices. The procedure will gcnecal!)' not 
rely on American put options because they are subject to early exercise even when the underlying 
stock does not pay dividends. 
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to the standard deviation, This method is designed to provide more weight to 
those options whose price is very sensitive to a percentage change in the stan­
dard deviation, which results in attributing more weight to out-of-the-money call 
options.^^ The estimated weighted average implied standard deviation & is then 
computed according to the foUowing formula; 

where 

(Oi = 
{dCi/So-i)(a-i/Ci) 

T',^,{dCild<Ji)(crilCi) 

(5.7) 

represents the weight of the implied standard deviation of 
call option / 

(dCildcri)((r\/Ci) = the elasticity of the price of the tth call option (Ci) with 
respect to its implied standard deviation (ff,)'^ 

However, as an interesting attempt to reduce the number of computations 
necessary to obtain a unique implied standard deviation, we mention Beckers' 
empirical study (1981) of stock returns' future variability estimates. The author 
suggests that a single ISD computed from the market price of the most at-the-
money call option (i.e., the call option with the highest first derivative of its price 
with respect to o) will produce a better forecast of stock return's future variability 
than any other method based on weighted implied standard deviations computed 
from several options. 

This method has the advantage of only requiring a single option's market 
price to compute the ISD, and we can then use the latter to price all other options 
according to the Black and Scholes formula. This simultaneous pricing would of 
course have been biased had it relied on the weighted implied standard deviation 
method. 

The implied standard deviation is currently the most powerful approach for 
estimating a stock's return future variance from the most recent maricet data. 
Empirical studies by Latan6 and Rendleman (1976) and Beckers (1981) have 
indeed shown that implied standard deviations are better suited than historical 
standard deviations to predict a stock's future variability and hence to price stock 
options. 

' ' These options have indeed the highest price elasticity with respect to a change in the stock returns' 
standard deviation. 
'^ The elasticities are computed by first determining the derivative of the call option's price with 
respect to its standard deviation from the Black and Scholes formula. We saw in Chapter 4, Section 
5 tliat: 

&C 
da-

=^sj^f-l\dx) (4,53) 
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Although the ISD method is broadly used among stock and currency option 
managers, however, there are a variety of "home made" variance estimations 
used by many banks and financial institutions. They essentially result from the 
combination of a historically estimated standard deviation with an implicit standard 
deviation and with each inslitutioii's own forecast about the stock's future riskiness. 

As a conclusion to this rather delicate task of estimating a stock's future 
variance from past or current market data, we should remember that the historical 
variance method and the implied standard deviation method both assume that 
the stock's variance remains constant over time. Of course, if this assumption is 
violated, the validity ofthe variance estimation techniques presented in this section 
as well as ofthe Black and Scholes formula become a highly controversial issue. '̂  

Now that we have seen how the essential parameters of the Black and Scholes 
formula are chosen or estimated from available market data, we will present an 
example to illustrate how this procedure could be practically implemented to 
compute theoretical prices of European put and call options, 

F A Numerical Example 

Suppose on February 8, 1988 we want to assess whether the call option with 
an exercise price of $52, expiring on March 25, 1988 is a good buy given that 
the underlying stock ABC is currently selling at $51.7. We will compute the 
option's remaining time to maturity expressed as a function of the current calendar 
year: '*' 

r - 46/366 = 0.125683 

Looking at the newspaper we then find that the T-Bill with the closest maturity 
(expiring March 24, 1988) has an annualized yield to maturity of 5,77 percent. 

Since the Black and Scholes formula relies on a continuously compounded 
interest rate, we then need to convert the discrete time annualized yieid-to-maturity 
of the T-Bill into its continuous-time equivalent according to the following formula 
presented in Chapter 4: 

r = ln(l + i ) - ln(1.0577) = 5,61% 

We previously computed the annualized historical standard deviation of stock ABC 
teturns (see section E), which is equal to 

a = 0.1235 

'•̂  We will examine in the next chapter whether it is realistic to assume that the continuously 
compounded rates of retum on the stock follow a normal distribution characterized by a constant 
mean and a constant variance per unit of time, 
''' Note that we are using the exact number of calendar days in year 1988. 
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980 Regulated Operations 
20 Discontinuation of Rate-Regulated Accounting 

05 Overview and Background 

General Note : The Overview and Background Section provides overview and background 
material for the guidance contained in the Subtopic. It does not provide the historical background 
or due process. It may contain certain material that users generally consider useful to understand 
the typical situations addressed by the standards. The Section does not summarize the accounting 
and reporting requirements. 

General 

9 8 0 - 2 0 - 0 5 - 1 This Subtopic addresses the discontinuation of rate-regulated accounting when an 
entity no longer meets the criteria in paragraph 980-10-15-2. 

9 8 0 - 2 0 - 0 5 - 2 Deregulation of certain Industries and changes in the method of regulating others 
have caused several entities to discontinue application of this Topic for some or all of their 
operations. 

http://asc.fasb.org/prmt&rendercnad=section&trid-2156603&nav type=.section_follover_p... 7/27/2011 
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980 Regulated Operations 
20 Discontinuation of Rate-Regulated Accounting 

15 Scope and Scope Exceptions 

Genera l No te : The Scope and Scope Exceptions Section outlines the Items (for example, the 
entities, transactions, instruments, or events) to which the guidance in the Subtopic does or does 
not apply. In some cases, the Section may contain definitional or other text to frame the scope. 

General 

> Overall Guidance 

9 8 0 - 2 0 - 1 5 - 1 This Subtopic follows the same Scope and Scope Exceptions as outlined in the 
Overall Subtopic, see Section 980-10-15, with specific exceptions as noted below, which provides 
further guidance on an entity's operations that no longer meet the criteria of regulated operations. 

> Entit ies 

9 8 0 - 2 0 - 1 5 - 2 Failure of an entity's operations to continue to meet the criteria in paragraph 980-
10-15-2 can result from different causes. Examples Include the following: 

a. Deregulation 

b. A change in the regulator's approach to setting rates from cost-based rate-making to 
another form of regulation 

c. Increasing competition that limits the entity's ability to sell utiiity services or products at 
rates that will recover costs (as used in paragraph 980-10-15-2) 

d. Regulatory actions resulting from resistance to rate increases that limit the entity's ability 
to sell utility services or products at rates that will recover costs if the entity is unable to 
obtain (or chooses not to seek) relief from prior regulatory actions through appeals to the 
regulator or the courts. 

9 8 0 - 2 0 - 1 5 - 3 Regardless of the reason for an entity's discontinuation of application of the 
Regulated Operations Topic, this Subtopic specifies how that discontinuation shall be reported in 
the entity's general-purpose external financial statements. 

http://ascJasb.org/print&rendercmd^section&trid-2156607&nav_type^section_rollover_p... 7/27/2011 
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980 Regulated Operations 
20 Discontinuation of Rate-Regulated Accounting 

20 Glossary 

A l l owance for Funds Used dur ing Const ruc t ion 

The cost of fmancing construction as financed partially by borrowings and partially by equity, 
capitalized as part of the cost of plant and equipment pursuant to requirements of the regulator. 

Regu la to ry Assets and Regulatory L iab i l i t ies 

Regulatory assets and regulatory liabilities are those assets and liabilities recognized pursuant to 
the provisions of paragraphs 980-340-25-1 and 980-405-25-1. These assets and liabilities are not 
recognized by entities in general. 

ht1p://asc.fasb.org/prinl&rendercmd=glossarysection&trid^21566I0&nav_type=section_ro... 7/27/201 
3 
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35 Subsequent Measurement 

General No te : The Subsequent Measurement Section provides guidance on an entity's 
subsequent measurement and subsequent recognition of an item. Situations that may result in 
subsequent changes to carrying amount include impairment, fair value adjustments, depreciation 
and amortization, and so forth. 

General 

> Discontinuation of Recognition Following Regulator Act ions 

9 8 0 - 2 0 - 3 5 - 1 An entity that discontinues application of the Regulated Operations Topic shall no 
longer recognize the effects of actions of a regulator as assets or liabilities unless the right to 
receive payment or the obligation to pay exists as a result of past events or transactions and 
regardless of future transactions. 

> Plant, Equipment, and Inventory 

9 8 0 - 2 0 - 3 5 - 2 This Subtopic requires that upon the discontinuation of rate-regulated accounting, 
the carrying amounts o f the plant, equipment, and inventory measured and recorded pursuant to 
this Topic shall not be adjusted unless those assets are impaired. 

9 8 0 - 2 0 - 3 5 - 3 The carrying amounts of plant, equipment, and inventory for entities applying this 
Topic differ from those for entities in general only because of the a l l owance for f unds used 
dur ing cons t ruc t i on , intra-entity profit, and disallowances of costs of recently completed plants. 
If any other amounts that would not be includable in the carrying amounts of plant, equipment, or 
inventory by entities in general are included in or netted against the carrying amounts of plant, 
equipment, and inventory, those amounts shall be separated from the carrying amounts of plant, 
equipment, and inventory and accounted for as prescribed in this Subtopic. 

9 8 0 - 2 0 - 3 5 - 4 For example, postconstruction operating costs that were capitalized pursuant to 
paragraph 980-340-25-1 represent the effects of actions of a regulator regardless of their 
classification in the financial statements and shall be accounted for as this Subtopic prescribes for 
the effects of actions of a regulator. 

9 8 0 - 2 0 - 3 5 - 5 Another example of the effect of actions of a regulator that would require 
adjustment is the cumulative difference, if any, between recorded depreciation and deprecic^tion 
computed using a generally accepted method of depreciation. 

> Regulatory Assets and Liabilities Originating in a Separable Port ion o f the Entity 

9 8 0 - 2 0 - 3 5 - 6 The regu la tory assets and regu la to ry l iab i l i t ies that originate in a separable 
portion of an entity to which this Subtopic is applied shal! be evaluated on the basis of where (that 

http://asc.fasb.org/print&rendercmd^section&trid=2156613&nav type-scctionrollover p... 7/27/2011 I 

http://asc.fasb.org/print&rendercmd%5esection&trid=2156613&nav


Financial Accounting Standards Board Page 2 of 2 

is, the portion of the business in which) the regulated cash flows to realize and settle them, 
respectively, will be derived. Regulated cash flows are from rates that are charged to customers 
and intended by regulators to be for the recovery of the specified regulatory assets and the 
settlement of regulatory liabilities. They are derived from a levy on rate-regulated goods or 
services provided by another separable portion of the entity that meets the criteria of paragraph 
980-10-15-2 for application of this Topic. 

9 8 0 - 2 0 - 3 5 - 7 There is no elimination o f the regulatory assets and regulatory liabilities that 
originate in the separable portion of the business to which this Subtopic is applied and for which 
the deregulatory legislation or rate order (whichever Is necessary to effect change in the 
jurisdiction) specifies the collection of regulated cash flows until any of the following occur; 

a. They are recovered by (in the case of assets) or settled through (in the case of liabilities) 
collection of regulated cash flows. 

b. They are individually impaired (in the case of assets) or the regulator eliminates the 
obligation (in the case of liabilities) as specified by the provisions of this Topic. 

c. The separable portion of the business from which the regulated cash flows are derived no 
longer meets the criteria of paragraph 980-10-15-2 for application of this Topic. 

9 8 0 - 2 0 - 3 5 - 8 The source of the cash flow approach adopted in paragraphs 980-20-35-6 through 
35-9 shal! be used for recoveries of all costs and settlements of all obligations (not just for 
regulatory assets and regulatory liabilities that are recorded at the date this Subtopic is applied) for 
which regulated cash flows are specifically provided in the deregulatory legislation or rate order 
(whichever Is necessary to effect change in the jurisdiction). 

9 8 0 - 2 0 - 3 5 - 9 A cost or an obligation is recognized as a regulatory asset or a regulatory liability 
within the separable portion of the entity from which the regulated cash flows for its recovery or 
settlement, respectively, are derived once it meets both of the following conditions: 

a. Expensed or incurred after this Subtopic is applied to the portion of the business where it 
originated (such as the loss on the sale of an electricity generating plant or the loss on the 
buy-out of a purchased power contract that Is recognized after this Subtopic is applied to the 
generation portion of the business) 

b. Specified for recovery or settlement tn the deregulatory legislation or a rate order 
(whichever is necessary to effect change in the jurisdiction) and is recovered or settled in the 
same manner (that is, via regulated cash flows) as the regulatory assets and regulatory 
liabilities described in paragraphs 980-20-35-6 through 35-^9. 

Those regulatory assets and regulatory liabilities shall be carried in this other separable portion of 
the business until they are collected or settled, until they are individually impaired (assets) or 
eliminated (liabilities), or until that separable portion of the business no longer meets the criteria of 
paragraph 980-10-15-2 for application of this Topic. 

http://asc.fasb.org/print&rendercmd=section&trid^2l56613&nav_t>'pc^section_rolloverji... 7/27/2011 5 
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40 Derecognition 

General No te : The Derecognition Section provides guidance on determining whether and when 
an entity should remove an item from the financial statements. For example, the entity would 
derecognize an asset because it no longer has rights to the asset or it would derecognize a liability 
because it no longer has any obligation. 

General 

> Discontinuation of Regulatory Operations Guidance 

9 8 0 - 2 0 - 4 0 - 1 When an entity determines that its operations in a regulatory jurisdiction no longer 
meet the criteria of paragraph 980-10-15-2 for application of the Regulated Operations Topic, that 
entity shall discontinue application of this Topic to its operations in that jurisdiction. If a separable 
portion of the entity's operations within a regulatory jurisdiction ceases to meet the criteria of that 
paragraph for application of this Topic, application of this Topic to that separable portion shall be 
discontinued. That situation creates a presumption that application of this Topic shall be 
discontinued for all o f the entity's operations within that regulatory jurisdiction. That presumption 
can be overcome by establishing that the entity's other operations within that jurisdiction continue 
to meet the criteria of paragraph 980-10-15-2 for application of this Topic. The separable portion 
may be an entity's operations within a regulatory jurisdiction or a smaller portion (such as a 
customer class within a regulatory jurisdiction), either of which could require the allocation of 
system-wide assets and liabilities. 

9 8 0 - 2 0 - 4 0 - 2 When an entity discontinues application of this Topic to all or part of its operations, 
that entity shall eliminate from its statement of financial position prepared for general-purpose 
external financial reporting the effects of any actions of regulators that had been recognized as 
assets and liabilities pursuant to this Topic but would not have been recognized as assets and 
liabilities by entities in general, and the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets Subsections 
of Subtopic 360-10 shall apply, except for the provisions for income statement reporting in 
paragraphs 360-10-45-4 and 360-10-50-2. However, the carrying amounts of plant, equipment, 
and Inventory measured and reported pursuant to this Topic shali not be adjusted unless those 
assets are impaired, in which case the carrying amounts of those assets shall be reduced to reflect 
that impairment. 

9 8 0 - 2 0 - 4 0 - 3 The carrying amounts of plant, equipment, and Inventory for entities applying this 
Topic differ from those for entitles in general only because of the a l l owance fo r funds used 
dur ing cons t ruc t i on , intra-entity profit, and disallowances of costs of recently completed plants. 
If any other amounts that would not be includable in the carrying amounts of plant, equipment, or 
inventory by entities in general (such as postconstruction operating costs capitalized pursuant to 
paragraph 980-340-25-1) are included in or netted against the carrying amounts of plant, 
equipment, or inventory, those amounts shall be accounted for as this Subtopic prescribes for the 
effects of actions of a regulator. 
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98O-20-4O-4 Whether those assets have been impaired shall be judged in the same manner as 
for entities in general. The net effect of the adjustments required by this Subtopic shall be Included 
in income ofthe period in which the discontinuation occurs and shal! be classified as an 
extraordinary item. 

98O-20-40-5 Examples illustrating the discontinuation of regulatory operations guidance include 
the following: 

a. Example 1 (see paragraph 980-20-55-1) illustrates assets recorded based solely on 
expected future revenue from the regulator. 

b. Example 2 (see paragraph 980-20-55-6) Illustrates liabilities recorded based solely on 
actions of the regulator. 

c. Example 3 (see paragraph 980-20-55-10) Illustrates assets recorded for deferred income 
taxes not previously recognized for rate-making purposes but expected to be in the future. 

> Deregulatory Legislation or Rate Order in a Separable Portion of the Entity 

9 8 0 - 2 0 - 4 0 - 6 When deregulatory legislation is passed or when a rate order (whichever Is 
necessary to effect change in the jurisdiction) that contains sufficient detail for the entity to 
reasonably determine how the transition plan will affect a separable portion of its business whose 
pricing is being deregulated is issued, the entity shal! stop applying this Topic to that separable 
portion of its business. It has not been established whether an entity shall stop applying the 
accounting and reporting for regulatory operations as provided in the other Subtopics of this Topic 
to that separable portion of Its business before the issuance of sufficiently detailed deregulatory 
legislation or a sufficiently detailed rate order. 

7 
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980 Regulated Operations 
20 Discontinuation of Rate-Regulated Accounting 

45 Other Presentation Matters 

Genera l Note : The Other Presentation Matters Section provides guidance on other presentation 
matters not addressed in the Recognition, Initial Measurement, Subsequent Measurement, and 
Derecognition Sections. Other presentation matters may include items such as current or long-
term balance sheet classification, cash flow presentation, earnings per share matters, and so 
forth. The FASB Codification also contains Presentation Topics, which provide guidance for general 
presentation and display items. See those Topics for genera! guidance. 

General 

> Separable Port ion Following Discontinuation of Regulatory Operations Guidance 

9 8 0 - 2 0 - 4 5 - 1 Once the Regulated Operations Topic is no longer applied to a separable portion of 
an entity's business, the financial statements shall segregate, via financial statement display or 
footnote disclosure, the amounts contained in the financial statements that relate to that separable 
portion. 
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980 Regulated Operations 
20 Discontinuation of Rate-Regulated Accounting 

50 Disclosure 

Genera l Note: The Disclosure Section provides guidance regarding the disclosure in the notes to 
financial statements. In some cases, disclosure may relate to disclosure on the face of the 
financial statements. 

General 

9 8 0 - 2 0 - 5 0 - 1 For the period In which an entity reflects the discontinuation of application of the 
Regulated Operations Topic all or a separable portion of its operations, the entity shall disclose the 
reasons for the discontinuation and identify the portion of its operations to which the application of 
this Topic is being discontinued. 

9 8 0 - 2 0 - 5 0 - 2 The disclosure requirements of Subtopic 225-20 for extraordinary items apply to 
the net adjustment reported in the statement of operations as a result of applying this Subtopic. 

9 
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980 Regulated Operations 
20 Discontinuation of Rate-Regulated Accounting 

55 Implementation Guidance and Illustrations 

General No te : The Implementation Guidance and Illustrations Section contains implementation 
guidance and illustrations that are an Integral part of the Subtopic. The implementation guidance 
and illustrations do not address all possible variations. Users must consider carefully the actual 
facts and circumstances In relation to the requirements of the Subtopic. 

General 

> Il lustrations 

> > Example 1 ; Assets Recorded Based Solely on Expected Future Revenue from the 
Regulator 

9 8 0 - 2 0 - 5 5 - 1 This Example illustrates the guidance in paragraphs 980-20-40-1 through 40-4. 

9 8 0 - 2 0 - 5 5 - 2 Utility A operates solely In one regulatory jurisdiction. At December 3 1 , 19X1, 
Utifity A concludes, based on current market conditions, that tt no longer meets the criteria of 
paragraph 980-10-15-2 for the application o f the Regulated Operations Topic. Utility A's statement 
of financial position at December 3 1 , 19X1, includes all of the following Items: 

a. Deferred purchased power costs (costs of power used for operations in prior periods that 
were expected to be recovered from customers as a result of an automatic adjustment clause) 

b. Deferred costs of abandoned plant (costs for which recovery was being provided through 
rates) 

c. Deferred costs of repairing storm damage. 

9 8 0 - 2 0 - 5 5 - 3 Those items should be reported as follows as of December 3 1 , 19X1. 

9 8 0 - 2 0 - 5 5 - 4 All of those Items should be eliminated from the entity's statement of financial 
position when it ceases to apply this Topic. The resulting charge to income, net of any related tax 
effects should be reported as an extraordinary Item in the period that Includes December 3 1 , 19X1. 
The entity should no longer defer those costs and report them as assets because they could not be 
reported as assets by entities in general. Entities in general would report a receivable for those 
Items only if a right to receive payment exists as a result of past events or transactions and 
regardless of future transactions (such as future sales). 

9 8 0 - 2 0 - 5 5 - 5 For example, a contract between a supplier and a customer for the sale of fuel oi! 
may specify that next year's sales price will be adjusted based on the supplier's current-year cost 
of fuel oil. Even though it is probable that a future economic benefit (the ability to charge a higher 
price in the future) will result from the supplier's current-year cost of fuel oil, no asset exists at the 

http://asc.fasb.org/print&rendercmd=section&trid^2156625&nav_type=section_roUover_p... 7/27/2011 
\o 

http://asc.fasb.org/print&rendercmd=section&trid%5e2156625&nav_type=section_roUover_p


Financial Accounting Standards Board Page 2 of 3 

end of the current year because the transactions (sales to the customer) that give the supplier 
control of the benefit are in the future. However, if the contract provides that the customer is 
obligated to pay additional amounts related to past purchases and regardless of future purchases, 
the supplier has an asset and it does not matter whether that payment is made in a single amount 
or when the customer will pay for next year's purchases. 

> > Example 2: Liabilit ies Recorded Based Solely on Act ions of the Regulator 

9 8 0 - 2 0 - 5 5 - 6 This Example illustrates the guidance in paragraphs 980-20-40-1 through 40-4. 

9 8 0 - 2 0 - 5 5 - 7 Utility B operates In two regulatory jurisdictions, State 1 and State 2; 40 percent of 
Utility B's operations are located in State 1 and 60 percent in State 2; system-wide assets, 
liabilities, and certain gains and losses are allocated 40 percent to State 1 and 60 percent to State 
2. At December 3 1 , 19X2, Utility B concludes, based on current and expected future market 
conditions in State 1, that It no longer meets the criteria of paragraph 980-10-15-2 for application 
of this Topic to its operations in State 1. No similar conditions exist in State 2, and actions of State 
I's regulators-are not expected to Influence the decisions of regulators In State 2. Utility B's 
statement of financial position at December 31 , 19X2, includes the following items. 

Deferred gain on restructuring debt, being 
amortized for rate-making purposes on ari 
allocated basis by both states S 50.000 

Revenues coileaed subject lo retund in prior 
years tn State 1, expected to t>e rofundod 
through iuture rates $ 75,000 

9 8 0 - 2 0 - 5 5 - 8 Those items should be reported as follows as of December 3 1 , 19X2. 

9 8 0 - 2 0 - 5 5 - 9 The portion o f the deferred gain allocable to State 1 (determined In this Example to 
be 40 percent of $50,000, or $20,000), net of any reiated tax effects, should be eliminated from 
the entity's statement of financial position when it ceases to apply this Topic to its operations in 
State 1. No adjustment should be made for the deferred gain applicable to State 2. The regulatory-
created accrual for revenues subject to refund in State 1, net of any related tax effects, should be 
eliminated. Whether any liability related thereto exists should be determined under generally 
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) for entities in general. For example, amounts that were 
collected in the current or prior periods for which refunds will be made regardless of future sales 
should continue to be reported as liabilities after application of this Topic is discontinued. The credit 
to income resulting from the above adjustments, net of any related tax effects, should be reported 
as an extraordinary item in the period that includes December 31 , 19X2. 

> > Example 3: Regulatory-Created Assets Resulting f rom the Recording of Deferred Income 
Taxes Not Recognized for Rate-Making 

9 8 0 - 2 0 - 5 5 - 1 0 This Example illustrates the guidance in paragraphs 980-20-40-1 through 40-4. 

9 8 0 - 2 0 - 5 5 - 1 1 Utility C operates solely in one regulatory jurisdiction. At June 30, 19X3, Utility C 
concludes, based on new legislation, that it no longer meets the criteria of paragraph 980-10-15-2 
for application of this Topic . Utility C had adopted Subtopic 740-10 In 19X2 and because of 
applying this Topic had recorded a regulatory-created asset of $650,000 for deferred taxes 
resulting from temporary differences that had not been recognized in the rate-making process but 
that were expected to be recovered In the future. 

9 8 0 - 2 0 - 5 5 - 1 2 The following reporting is required for that regulatory-created asset. 
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9 8 0 - 2 0 - 5 5 - 1 3 Utility C should eliminate that regulatory-created asset from its statement of 
financial position when the entity ceases to apply this Topic. The charge to income, net of any 
related tax effects, should be reported as an extraordinary item in the period that includes June 30, 
19X3. 

1 2 . 
http://asc.fasb.org/print&rendercmd=section&trid-2156625&nav_type^sectionroilover_p... 7/27/2011 

http://asc.fasb.org/print&rendercmd=section&trid-2156625&nav_type%5esectionroilover_p


Financial Accounting Standards Board Page 1 of 4 

July 27, 2011 

980 Regulated Operations 
20 Discontinuation of Rate-Regulated Accounting 

75 XBRL Elements 

A l l o w a n c e f o r F u n d s U s e d D u r i n g C o n s t r u c t i o n , C a p i t a l i z e d I n t e r e s t 

E lement Name: PubUcUtHitiesAllowanceForFundsUsedDuringConstructionCapitalizedlnterest 
2011-06-15 

This XBRL e lemen t references the fo l l ow ing p a r a g r a p h ( s ) / t e r m ( s ) in th is Subtop ic : 

• Allowance for Funds Used during Construction 

This XBRL e lemen t references the fo l l ow ing p a r a g r a p h ( s } / t e r n i ( s ) in o ther 
Sub top tc (s ) : 

• 980 Regulated Operations > 835 Interest > 45 Other Presentation > General. 45-1 

C a p i t a l i z e d I n t e r e s t C o s t s , I n c l u d i n g A l l o w a n c e f o r F u n d s U s e d D u r i n g 
C o n s t r u c t i o n 

E lement Name: InterestCostsIncurredCapitaiized 
2011-06-15 

This XBRL e lemen t references the fo l l ow ing p a r a g r a p h ( s ) / t e r m ( s ) in th is Subtop ic : 

• Allowance for Funds Used during Construction 

This XBRL e lemen t re ferences the fo l l ow ing p a r a g r a p h ( s ) / t e r m ( s ) in o ther 
Sub top i c ( s ) : 

• 980 Regulated Operations > 835 Interest > 45 Other Presentation > General. 45-1 

C o m p e t i t i v e T r a n s i t i o n C h a r g e , N o n c u r r e n t 

E lement Name: CompetitiveTransitionChargeNoncurrent 

This XBRL e lement references the f o l l ow ing p a r a g r a p h ( s ) / t e r m ( s ) in th is Subtop ic : 

• 980 Regulated Operations > 20 Discontinuation of Rate-Reoulated Accounting > 35 
Subsequent Measurement > General. 35-1 

• 980 Regulated Operations > 20 Discontinuation of Rate-Regulated Accounting > 35 
Subsequent Measurement > General, 35-6 

• 980 Regulated Operations > 20 Discontinuation of Rate-Regulated Accounting > 45 
Other Presentation > General, 45-1 

Th is XBRL e lemen t references the f o l l ow ing p a r a g r a p h ( s ) / t e r m ( s ) in o ther 
Sub top i c (s ) : 

• Incurred Cost 

D i s c o n t i n u a n c e o f C e r t a i n R e g u l a t o r y R e p o r t i n g P r a c t i c e s 

E lement Name: DiscontinuanceOfCertainReguiatoryReportingPractices 

This XBRL e lement references the fo l l ow ing p a r a g r a p h ( s ) / t e r m ( s ) in th is Subtopic : 

• 980 Regulated Operations > 20 Discontinuation of Rate-Regulated Accounting > 50 

http://asc.fasb.org/prinl&rendercmd'^brlsection&lrid=2156632&nav_type-scclion_rollov,,. 7/27/2011 
.5 

http://asc.fasb.org/prinl&rendercmd'%5ebrlsection&lrid=2156632&nav_type-scclion_rollov


Financial Accounting Standards Board Page 2 of 4 

Disclosure > General, 50-1 

Th is XBRL e lemen t references the f o l l ow ing p a r a g r a p h ( s ) / t e r m ( s ) in o ther 
5 u b t o p i c ( s ) : 

• 235 Notes to Financial Statements > 10 OveraJI > 50 Disclosure > General. 50-3 

D i s c o n t i n u e d A p p l i c a t i o n o f S p e c i a l i z e d A c c o u n t i n g f o r R e g u l a t e d O p e r a t i o n s 
E lement Name : DiscontinuedApplicationOfSpecializedAccountingForRegulatedOperations 

Th is XBRL e lemen t references the f o l l ow ing p a r a g r a p h ( s ) / t e r m ( s ) in th is Subtop ic : 

• 980 Regulated Operations > 20 Discontinuation of Rate-Regulated Accounting > 50 
Disclosure > General. 50-1 

• 980 Regulated Operations > 20 Discontinuation of Rate-Regulated Accounting > j O 
Disclosure > General, 50-2 

I n t e r e s t C o s t s , C a p i t a l i z e d D u r i n g P e r i o d 

E lement Name : InterestCostsCapitalized 
2011-06-15 

Th is XBRL e lemen t references t he f o l l o w i n g p a r a g r a p h ( s ) / t e r m ( s } in th is Subtop ic : 

• Allowance for Funds Used during Construction 

Th is XBRL e lemen t references the f o l l ow ing p a r a g r a p h ( s ) / t e r m ( s ) in o the r 
S u b t o p i c ( s ) : 

• 835 Interest > 20 Capitalization of Interest > 50 Disclosure > General. 50 - l fb ) 

P u b l i c U t i l i t i e s , D e r e g u l a t i o n A c t i v i t i e s 
E lement Name: PublicUtilitiesDeregulationActivities 

Th is XBRL e lemen t references the f o l l ow ing p a r a g r a p h ( s ) / t e r m ( s } in th is Subtopic : 

• 980 Regulated Operations > 20 Discontinuation of Rate-Regulated Accounting > ^ 0 
Disclosure > General. 50-1 

Th i s XBRL e lemen t references the f o l l ow ing p a r a g r a p h ( s } / t e r m ( s ) in o the r 
Sub top i c ( s } : 

• 860 Transfers and Servicing > 10 Overall > 55 Implementation > General, 55-7 

P u b l i c U t i l i t i e s , D e r e g u l a t i o n o f E l e c t r i c i t y P r i c i n g A c t i v i t i e s 

E lement Na me: PublicUtititiesDeregulationOfElectricityPricingActivities 

This XBRL e lemen t references the f o l l ow ing p a r a g r a p h ( s ) / t e r m ( s ) in th is Subtopic : 

• 980 Regulated Operations > 20 Discontinuation of Rate-Regulated Accounting >^45^ 
Other Presentation > General. 45-1 

• 980 Regulated Operations > 20 Discontinuation of Rate-Regulated Accounting > 50 
Disclosure > General, 50-1 

• 980 Regulated Operations > 20 Discontinuation of Rate-Regulated Accounting > ^ 0 
Disclosure > General. 50-2 

This XBRL e lement references the f o l l ow ing p a r a g r a p h ( s ) / t e r m ( s ) in o the r 
Sub top i c ( s ) : 

• 860 Transfers and Servicing > 10 Overall > 55 Implementation > General, 55-7 
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P u b l i c U t i l i t i e s , D i s c l o s u r e o f R e g u l a t o r y M a t t e r s P e n d i n g 

E lement Name : PublicUtilitiesDisclosureOfRegulatoryMattersPending 

This XBRL e lement references the f o l l ow ing p a r a g r a p h ( s ) / t e r m ( s ) in th i s Subtopic : 

• 980 Regulated Operations > 20 Discontinuation of Rate-Regulated Accounting > 40 
Derecognition > General, 40-6 

This XBRL e lement references the f o l l ow ing p a r a g r a p h ( s ) / t e r m ( s ) in o the r 
Sub top i c ( s ) : 

• 450 Contingencies > 20 Loss Contingencies > 50 Disclosure > General. 50-1 

M 450 Contingencies > 20 Loss Contingencies > 50 Disclosure > General. 50-3 

• 450 Contingencies > 20 Loss Contingencies > 50 Disclosure > General, 50-4 

• 450 Contingencies > 20 Loss Contingencies > 50 Disclosure > General, 50-5 

• 980 Regulated Operations > 360 Propertv. Plant, and Equipment > 55 Implementation 
> General, 55-16 

• 980 Regulated Operations > 360 Propertv. Plant, and Equipment > 55 Implennentation 
> General, 55-17 

- 980 Regulated Operations > 360 Property, Plant, and Equipment > 55 Implementation 
> General. 55-20 

• 980 Regulated Operations > 360 Propertv. Plant, and Equipment > 55 Implementation 
> General. 55-21 

• 980 Regulated Operations > 360 Property, Plant, and Equipment > 55 Implementation 
> General, 55-22 

• 980 Regulated Operations > 360 Property. Plant, and Equipment > 55 Implementation 
> General. 55-23 

• 980 Regulated Operations > 360 Property. Plant, and Equipment > 55 Implementation 
> General, 55-24 

• 980 Regulated Operations > 360 Property, Plant, and Equipment > 55 Implementation 
> General. 55-25 

• 980 Regulated Operations > 360 Propertv. Plant, and Equipment > 55 Implementation 
> General. 55-27 

• 980 Regulated Operations > 360 Property, Plant, and Equipment > 55 Implementation 
> General, 55-28 

• 980 Regulated Operations > 360 Propertv. Plant, and Equipment > 55 Implementation 
> General. 55-29 

P u b l i c U t i l i t i e s , I m p a c t o f D e r e g u l a t i o n A c t i v i t i e s 

E lement Name : PublicUtilitiesImpactOfDeregulationActivities 

Th is XBRL e lement references the f o l l ow ing p a r a g r a p h ( s ) / t e r m ( s ) in th is Subtopic : 

• 980 Regulated Operations > 20 Discontinuation of Rate-Regulated Accounting > 45 
Other Presentation > General. 45-1 

• 980 Regulated Operations > 20 Discontinuation of Rate-Regulated Accounting > 50 
Disclosure > General, 50-1 

• 980 Regulated Operations > 20 Discontinuation of Rate-Regulated Accounting > 50 
Disclosure > General. 50-2 

P u b l i c U t i l i t y R e g u l a t e d o r U n r e g u l a t e d S t a t u s [ A x i s ] 
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Element Name : PublicUtiiityRegulatedOrUnregulatedStatusAxis 

Th is XBRL e lemen t references the f o l l o w i n g p a r a g r a p h ( s ) / t e r m ( s ) in th i s Subtopic: 

• 980 Regulated Operations > 20 Discontinuation of Rate-Reoulated Accounting > 45 
Other Presentation > General. 45-1 

P u b l i c U t i l i t y , P r o p e r t y , P l a n t a n d E q u i p m e n t [ T a b l e ] 
E lement Name : PublicUtilityPropertyPlantAndEquipmentTable 

Th is XBRL e lemen t references the f o l l ow ing p a r a g r a p h ( s ) / t e r m ( s ) in th i s Subtopic: 

- 980 Regulated Operations > 20 Discontinuation of Rate-Regulated Accounting > 45 
Other Presentation > General, 45-1 

This XBRL e lemen t references the f o l l ow ing p a r a g r a p h ( s ) / t e r m ( s ) in o ther 
S u b t o p i c ( s ) : 

- 210 Balance Sheet > 10 Overall > S99 SEC Materials > General. S99- l f5X 210.5-
02.13fb)) 

R e g u l a t e d a n d U n r e g u l a t e d O p e r a t i o n [ D o m a i n ] 
E lement Name : ReguiatedAndUnregulatedOperationDomain 

Th is XBRL e lemen t references the f o l l ow ing p a r a g r a p h ( s ) / t e r m ( s ) in th is Subtopic : 

M 980 Regulated Operations > 20 Discontinuation of Rate-Requlafed Accounting > 45 
Other Presentation > General. 45-1 

S c h e d u l e o f P u b l i c U t i l i t y P r o p e r t y , P l a n t , a n d E q u i p m e n t [ T a b l e T e x t B l o c k ] 

E lement Name : ScheduleOfPublicUti!ityPropertyPlantAndEquipmentTextBioci< 

Th is XBRL e lemen t references the f o l l o w i n g p a r a g r a p h ( s ) / t e r m ( s ) in th is Subtopic: 

• 980 Regulated Operations > 20 Discontinuation of Rate-Reaulated Accounting > 45 
Other Presentation > General. 45-1 

Th is XBRL e lemen t references the f o l l o w i n g p a r a g r a p h ( s ) / t e r m ( s ) in o ther 
S u b t o p i c ( s ) : 

• 210 Balance Sheet > 10 Overall > S99 SEC Materials > General. 599- l fSX 210.5-
02.13fb)) 
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July 26, 2011 ^^^^ ^ ^ ^ P n r y exv^^v^^ 
1. 

980 Regulated Operations 
10 Overall 

15 Scope and Scope Exceptions 

General Note : The Scope and Scope Exceptions Section outlines the items (for example, the 
entities, transactions. Instruments, or events) to which the guidance in the Subtopic does or does 
not apply. In some cases, the Section may contain definitional or other text to frame the scope. 

General Note fo r Financial I n s t r u m e n t s : Some of the Items subject to the guidance in this 
Subtopic are f i nanc ia l i ns t ruments . For guidance on matters related broadly to all financial 
instruments, (including the fair value option, accounting for registration payment arrangements, 
and broad financial instrument disclosure requirements), see Topic 825. See Section 825-10-15 
for guidance on the scope of the Financial Instruments Topic. 

General 

> Overall Guidance 

9 8 0 - 1 0 - 1 5 - 1 The Subtopics within the Regulated Operations Topic only provide incremental 
industry-specific guidance for the entitles defined in this Scope Section, or as further defined in the 
Scope Sections o f the individual Regulated Operations Subtopics. Entities within the scope o f th is 
Topic shall also comply with the applicable guidance not Included In this Topic. 

> Entities 

9 8 0 - 1 0 - 1 5 - 2 The guidance in the Regulated Operations Topic applies to general-purpose 
external financial statements of an entity that has regulated operations that meet all o f the 
following criteria: 

a. The entity's rates for regulated services or products provided to its customers are 
established by or are subject to approval by an independent, third-party regulator or by Its 
own governing board empowered by statute or contract to establish rates that bind customers. 

b. The regulated rates are designed to recover the specific entity's costs of providing the 
regulated services or products. This criterion is intended to be applied to the substance of the 
regulation, rather than its form. If an entity's regulated rates are based on the costs of a group 
of entitles and the entity is so large in relation to the group of entities that Its costs are, in 
essence, the group's costs, the regulation would meet this criterion for that entity. 

c. In view of the demand for the regulated services or products and the level of competition, 
direct and indirect, it is reasonable to assume that rates set at levels that will recover the 
entity's costs can be charged to and collected from customers. This criterion requires 
consideration of anticipated changes in levels of demand or competition during the recovery 
period for any capitalized costs. This last criterion is not intended as a requirement that the 
entity earn a fair return on shareholders' investment under all conditions; an entity can earn 
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less than a fair return for many reasons unrelated to the ability to bill and collect rates that will 
recover a l l owab le costs. For example, mild weather might reduce demand for energy utility 
services. In that case, rates that were expected to recover an entity's allov^/able costs might 
not do so. The resulting decreased earnings do not demonstrate an inability to charge and 
collect rates that would recover the entity's costs; rather, they demonstrate the uncertainty 
inherent in estimating weather conditions. This requirement must also be evaluated in light of 
the circumstances. For example, if the entity has an exclusive franchise to provide regulated 
services or products in an area and competition from other services or products is minimal, 
there is usually a reasonable expectation that it will continue to meet the other criteria. 
Exclusive franchises can be revoked, but they seldom are. I f the entity has no exclusive 
franchise but has made the very large capital investment required to provide either the 
regulated services or products or an acceptable substitute, future competition also may be 
unlikely. 

9 8 0 - 1 0 - 1 5 - 3 In some cases, the rates set by state regulatory agencies are accepted for 
Medicare and Medicaid reimbursement purposes. There Is some disagreement about the extent to 
which such rates are based on a provider's costs. If regulatory agencies in those states base rates 
on the provider's costs and adopt a permanent system of regulation, health care providers in those 
jurisdictions could be subject to the provisions of th is Topic. However, the criterion in (c) in the 
preceding paragraph also would have to be considered to determine whether this Topic applies to 
the entity. 

9 8 0 - 1 0 - 1 5 - 4 If some of an entity's operations are regulated and meet the criteria of paragraph 
980-10-15-2. this Topic shall be applied to only that portion of the entity's operations. 

980-10--15-5 Guidance in other Codification Topics that applies to entities in general also applies 
to regulated entities. However, entities subject to this Topic shal! apply it Instead of any conflicting 
provisions of other parts of the Codification. For example, a regulator might authorize a regulated 
entity to incur a major research and development cost because the cost is expected to benefit 
future customers. The regulator might also direct that cost to be capitalized and amortized as an 
allowable cost over the period of expected benefit. I f the criteria of paragraph 980-340-25-1 are 
met, the entity shal! capi ta l ize that cost even though Subtopic 730-10 requires such costs to be 
charged to income currently. That Subtopic shall still apply to accounting for other research and 
development costs of the regulated entity, as shall the disclosure requirements of that Subtopic. 

9 8 0 - 1 0 - 1 5 - 6 Section 915-205-45 and paragraphs 915-215-45-1 through 45-3 and 915-235-50-
1 , which require disclosure of additional information, apply to development stage entities, which 
are also regulated entities in all cases. 

> Transact ions 

9 8 0 - 1 0 - 1 5 - 7 The guidance in the Regulated Operations Topic does not apply to any of the 
following transactions: 

a. Accounting for price controls that are imposed by governmental action in times of 
emergency, high inflation, or other unusual conditions, or accounting for contracts In general. 
However, if the terms of a contract between an entity and its customer are subject to 
regulation and the criteria of paragraph 980-10-15-2 are met with respect to that contract, the 
guidance in this Topic shall apply. 

b. An entity's regulatory accounting. Regulators may require regulated entities to maintain 
their accounts in a form that permits the regulator to obtain the information needed for 
regulatory purposes. This Topic neither limits a regulator's actions nor endorses them. 
Regulators' actions are based on many considerations. Accounting addresses the effects of 
those actions. This Topic merely specifies how the effects of different types of rate actions are 
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reported in general-purpose financial statements. 

c. The criterion in paragraph 980-10-15-2(3) is intended to exclude contractual arrangements 
in which the government, or another party that could be viewed as a regulator, is a party to a 
contract and is the entity's principal customer. 
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980 Regulated Operations 
340 Other Assets and Deferred Costs 

25 Recognition 

Genera l No te : The Recognition Section provides guidance on the required criteria, t iming, and 
location (within the financial statements) for recording a particular Item in the financial 
statements. Disclosure is not recognition. 

General 

> Effects of Regulation 

> > Recognit ion of Regulatory Assets 

9 8 0 - 3 4 0 - 2 5 - 1 Rate actions of a regulator can provide reasonable assurance of the existence of 
an asset. An entity shall cap i ta l i ze all or part of an incur red cost that would otherwise be 
charged to expense if both o f the following criteria are met: 

a. I t is probable (as defined in Topic 450) that future revenue in an amount at least equal to 
the capitalized cost will result from inclusion of that cost in a l l owab le costs for rate-making 
purposes. 

b. Based on available evidence, the future revenue will be provided to permit recovery o f the 
previously incurred cost rather than to provide for expected levels of similar future costs. If the 
revenue will be provided through an automatic rate-adjustment clause, this criterion requires 
that the regulator's intent clearly be to permit recovery o f the previously incurred cost. 

A cost that does not meet these asset recognition criteria at the date the cost is incurred shall be 
recognized as a regulatory asset when it does meet those criteria at a later date. 

> > Phase-In Plans 

9 8 0 - 3 4 0 - 2 5 - 2 If a phase- in p lan is ordered by a regulator in connection with a plant on which 
no substantial physical construction had been performed before January 1 , 1988, none o f the 
allowable costs that are deferred for future recovery by the regulator under the plan for rate-
making purposes shall be capitalized for general-purpose financial reporting purposes (hereinafter 
referred to as financial reporting). Allowable costs that are deferred for future recovery by the 
regulator under the plan consist of all allowable costs deferred for rate-making purposes under the 
plan beyond the period In which those allowable costs would be charged to expense under 
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) applicable to entities in general. 

9 8 0 - 3 4 0 - 2 5 - 3 If a phase-In plan is ordered by a regulator in connection with a plant completed 
before January 1 , 1988, or a plant on which substantial physical construction had been performed 
before January 1, 1988, the following criteria shall be applied to that plan. If the phase-in plan 
meets all of those criteria, all allowable costs that are deferred for future recovery by the regulator 
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under the plan shall be capitalized for financial reporting as a separate asset (a deferred charge). If 
any one of those criteria is not met, none of the allowable costs that are deferred for future 
recovery by the regulator under the plan shall be capitalized for financial reporting. The criteria to 
determine whether capitalization is appropriate are: 

a. The allowable costs in question are deferred pursuant to a formal plan that has been 
agreed to by the regulator. 

b. The plan specifies the timing of recovery of ail allowable costs that will be deferred under 
the plan, 

c. All allowable costs deferred under the plan are scheduled for recovery within 10 years of 
the date when deferrals begin. 

d. The percentage increase in rates scheduled under the plan for each future year is no 
greater than the percentage increase in rates scheduled under the plan for each Immediately 
preceding year. That is, the scheduled percentage increase in Year 2 is no greater than the 
percentage increase granted in Year 1, the scheduled percentage increase in Year 3 is no 
greater than the scheduled percentage increase in Year 2, and so forth. 

9 8 0 - 3 4 0 - 2 5 - 4 The following Examples illustrate various circumstances that may or may not 
constitute phase-in plans: 

a. Example 1 (see paragraph 980-340-55-9) illustrates a sale with leaseback as a capital 
lease. 

b. Example 2 (see paragraph 980-340-55-12) illustrates a sale with leaseback as an operating 
lease. 

c. Example 3 (see paragraph 980-340-55-15) Illustrates a sale with leaseback with profit 
recognition accelerated. 

d. Example 4 (see paragraph 980-340-55-18) illustrates the modified depreciation method. 

e. Example 5 (see paragraph 980-340-55-21) Illustrates deferred costs before a rate order is 
issued. 

f. Example 7 (see paragraph 980-340-55-39) illustrates a phase-in plan for two plants 
completed at different times that share common facilities. 

> > Al lowance for Earnings on Shareholder Investments Capitalized for Rate-Making 
Purposes 

9 8 0 - 3 4 0 - 2 5 - 5 If specified criteria are met, paragraph 980-340-25-1 requires capitalization of an 
incurred cost that would otherwise be charged to expense. An allowance for earnings on 
shareholders' investment is not an incurred cost that would otherwise be charged to expense. 
Accordingly, such an allowance shall not be capitalized pursuant to that paragraph. The phrase an 
allowance for earnings on shareholders' investment, as used in this Subtopic, is intended to have 
the same meaning as the phrase a designated cost of equity funds, used in paragraph 980-835-30-
1 , which, in specified circumstances, requires capitalization of an allowance for earnings on 
shareholders' investment (a designated cost of equity funds) during construction. 

9 8 0 - 3 4 0 - 2 5 - 6 Paragraphs 980-340-25-2 through 25-3 require capitalization of an allowance for 
earnings on shareholders' investment for qualifying phase-In plans. If an allowance for earnings on 
shareholders' investment is capitalized for rate-making purposes other than during construction or 
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as part of a phase-in plan, the amount capitalized for rate-making purposes shall not be capitalized 
for financial reporting. For the requirement to accrue a carrying charge related to the expected 
recovery of the investment in abandoned assets, see paragraph 980-360-35-7. 
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450 Contingencies 
20 Loss Contingencies 

20 Glossary 

Cont ingency 

An existing condition, situation, or set of circumstances involving uncertainty as to possible gain 
(gain contingencv) or loss floss contingency) to an entity that will ultimately be resolved when one 
or more future events occur or fail to occur. 

Gain Cont ingency 

An existing condition, situation, or set of circumstances involving uncertainty as to possible gain to 
an entity that will ultimately be resolved when one or more future events occur or fail to occur. 

Loss Cont ingency 

An existing condition, situation, or set of circumstances involving uncertainty as to possible loss to 
an entity that will ultimately be resolved when one or more future events occur or fail to occur. The 
term loss is used for convenience to include many charges against income that are commonly 
referred to as expenses and others that are commonly referred to as losses. 

Probable 

The future event or events are likely to occur. 

Reasonably Possible 

The chance of the future event or events occurring is more than remote but less than likely. 

Remote 

The chance of the future event or events occurring is slight. 
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980 Regulated Operations 
405 Liabilities 

25 Recognition 

General Note: The Recognition Section provides guidance on the required criteria, timing, and 
location (within the financial statements) for recording a particular item In the financial 
statements. Disclosure is not recognition. 

General Note for Fair Value Option: Some of the items subject to the guidance in this Subtopic 
may qualify for application of the Fair Value Option Subsections of Subtopic 825-10. Those 
Subsections (see paragraph 825-10-05-5) address circumstances in which entities may choose, at 
specified election dates, to measure eligible items at fair value (the fair value option). See Section 
825-10-15 for guidance on the scope of the Fair Value Option Subsections of the Financial 
Instruments Topic. 

General 

> Regulator-Imposed Liabilities 

9 8 0 - 4 0 5 - 2 5 - 1 Rate actions of a regulator can impose a liability on a regulated entity. Such 
liabilities are usually obligations to the entity's customers. The following are the usual ways in 
which liabilities can be imposed and the resulting accounting: 

a. A regulator may require refunds to customers. Refunds can be paid to the customers who 
paid the amounts being refunded; however, they are usualty provided to current customers by 
reducing current charges. Refunds that meet the criteria of accrual of loss contingencies (see 
paragraph 450-20-25-2) shall be recorded as liabilities and as reductions of revenue or as 
expenses of the regulated entity. 

b. A regulator can provide current rates intended to recover costs that are expected to be 
incurred in the future with the understanding that if those costs are not Incurred future rates 
will be reduced by corresponding amounts. If current rates are intended to recover such costs 
and the regulator requires the entity to remain accountable for any amounts charged pursuant 
to such rates and not yet expended for the intended purpose, the entity shall not recognize as 
revenues amounts charged pursuant to such rates. The usual mechanism used by regulators 
for this purpose is to require the regulated entity to record the anticipated cost as a liability in 
its regulatory accounting records. Those amounts shall be recognized as liabilities and taken to 
income only when the associated costs are incurred. (For related Implementation guidance, 
see paragraph 980-405-55-1). 

c. A regulator can require that a gain or other reduction of net a l lowable cos t s be given to 
customers over future periods. That would be accomplished, for rate-making purposes, by 
amortizing the gain or other reduction of net allowable costs over those future periods and 
reducing rates to reduce revenues in approximately the amount of the amortization. If a gain 
or other reduction of net allowable costs is to be amortized over future periods for rate-making 
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purposes, the regulated entity shall not recognize that gain or other reduction of net allowable 
costs in income ofthe current period. Instead, it shall record it as a liability for future 
reductions of charges to customers that are expected to result. 

http://asc.fasb.org/print&rendercmd=section&trid^2156753&nav_type=section_rolIover__p... 7/26/2011 C) 

http://asc.fasb.org/print&rendercmd=section&trid%5e2156753&nav_type=section_rolIover__p


Financial Accounting Standards Board Page 1 of 4 

July 26, 2011 

980 Regulated Operations 
605 Revenue Recognition 

25 Recognition 

Genera l No te : The Recognition Section provides guidance on the required criteria, t iming, and 
location (within the financial statements) for recording a particular item in the financial 
statements. Disclosure is not recognition. 

Genera l Note f o r Fair Va lue Op t i on : Some o f the items subject to the guidance in this Subtopic 
may qualify for application of the Fair Value Option Subsections of Subtopic 825-10. Those 
Subsections (see paragraph 825-10-05-5) address circumstances in which entities may choose, at 
specified election dates, to measure eligible items at fair value (the fair value option). See Section 
825-10-15 for guidance on the scope of the Fair Value Option Subsections of the Financial 
Instruments Topic. 

General 

> Alternative Revenue Programs 

9 8 0 - 6 0 5 - 2 5 - 1 Traditionally, regulated utilities whose rates are determined based on cost of 
service invoice their customers by applying approved base rates (designed to recover the utility's 
a l l owab le cos ts including a return on shareholders' investment) to usage. Some regulators of 
utilities have also authorized the use of additional, alternative revenue programs. The major 
alternative revenue programs currently used can generally be segregated into two categories. Type 
A and Type B. 

9 8 0 - 6 0 5 - 2 5 - 2 Type A programs adjust billings for the effects of weather abnormalities or broad 
externa! factors or to compensate the utility for demand-side management initiatives (for example, 
no-growth plans and similar conservation efforts). Type B programs provide for additional billings 
(incentive awards) If the utility achieves certain objectives, such as reducing costs, reaching 
specified milestones, or demonstratively improving customer service. 

9 8 0 - 6 0 5 - 2 5 - 3 Both types of programs enable the utility to adjust rates in the future (usually as 
a surcharge applied to future billings) in response to past activities or completed events. 

9 8 0 - 6 0 5 - 2 5 - 4 Once the specific events permitting billing o f the additional revenues under Type 
A and Type B programs have been completed, the regulated utility shall recognize the additional 
revenues If all of the following conditions are met: 

a. The program is established by an order from the utility's regulatory commission that allows 
for automatic adjustment of future rates. Verification o f the adjustment to future rates by the 
regulator would not preclude the adjustment from being considered automatic. 

b. The amount of additional revenues for the period is objectively determinable and is 
probable of recovery. 
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c. The additional revenues will be collected within 24 months following the end o f the annual 
period in which they are recognized. 

> Long-Term Power Sales Contracts 

9 8 0 - 6 0 5 - 2 5 - 5 In general, nonu t i l i t y genera to rs are not regulatied and do not meet the criteria 
of an entity with regulated operations as provided in paragraph 980-10-15-2. However, since 
nonutility generators provide many of the same services as entities with regulated operations, the 
guidance for nonutil ity generators is included in paragraphs 980-605-25-5 through 25-18. That 
portion of this Subsection assumes the seller of power under the long-term contract does not meet 
the criteria for application of this Topic. 

9 8 0 - 6 0 5 - 2 5 - 6 Nonutility generators provide a significant percentage of new electric generating 
capacity in the United States. Some of these generating plants are built by users primarily for their 
own energy needs while others are built specifically to sell power, usually to rate-regulated utilities, 
under long-term power sales contracts. Those contracts price the power sold under a wide variety 
of terms and arrangements. 

9 8 0 - 6 0 5 - 2 5 - 7 The long-term power sales contracts may provide for any o f the following; 

a. Stated prices per kilowatt hour that increase, decrease, or remain level over the term of 
the contract 

b. Formula-based prices per kilowatt hour 

c. Billings that are a combination of stated prices and formula-based prices per kilowatt hour. 

9 8 0 - 6 0 5 - 2 5 - 8 One example of a combination is a contract that provides for billings pursuant to 
a stated price schedule but also provides for a payment to be made or received by the nonutility 
generator at the end o f the contract so that total revenue recognized and payments made over the 
contract term equal the amount computed pursuant to the formula-based pricing arrangement. The 
differences between payments made and the amount computed under the formula-based pricing 
arrangement are recorded in an interest-bearing tracker account. In other cases, the cumulative 
balance in the tracker account at a defined point in the contract life may be amortized to zero 
through adjustments to subsequent billings. Another example of such a combination is a contract 
that provides for billings pursuant to a stated price schedule but that provides for a payment to be 
made by the nonutility generator, if necessary, at the end o f the contract so that the total revenue 
recognized and total amounts received by the nonutility generator over the contract term are 
limited to the lesser of the amount computed pursuant to the stated price schedule or the formula-
based pricing arrangement, 

9 8 0 - 6 0 5 - 2 5 - 9 Long-term power supply contracts that would qualify for lease accounting 
pursuant to Topic 840 are outside the scope of this Subtopic. 

9 8 0 - 6 0 5 - 2 5 - 1 0 For a discussion of the considerations required to determine whether a long-
term power sales contract arrangement contains a lease, see Subtopic 840-10. 

> > Contracts Containing Scheduled Price Changes 

9 8 0 - 6 0 5 - 2 5 - 1 1 For a power sales contract that contains scheduled price changes a nonutility 
generator shall recognize as revenue the lesser o f the following: 

a. The amount billable under the contract 
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b. An amount determined by the kilowatt hours made available during the period multiplied by 
the estimated average revenue per kilowatt hour over the term of the contract. 

9 8 0 - 6 0 5 - 2 5 - 1 2 The determination of the lesser amount shall be made annually based on the 
cumulative amounts that would have been recognized had each method been consistently applied 
from the beginning o f the contract term. 

> > Contracts Providing for Revenue Determination or Limitat ion Under Formula-Based 
Pricing Arrangements 

9 8 0 - 6 0 5 - 2 5 - 1 3 A nonutility generator shall recognize revenue in each period determined under 
the separate, formula-based pricing arrangement If it determines or limits total revenues billed 
under the contract (see the preceding two paragraphs). The separate, formula-based pricing 
arrangement shall not be used to recognize revenue If its only purpose is to establish liquidating 
damages. The nonutil ity generator shall recognize a receivable only if the contract requires a 
payment to the nonutil ity generator at the end of the contract term and such payment Is probable 
of recovery. A receivable arises when amounts billed are less than the amount computed pursuant 
to the formula-based pricing arrangement. 

> > Contracts Meeting Definit ion of Derivative 

9 8 0 - 6 0 5 - 2 5 - 1 4 If a long-term power sales contract meets the definition of a derivative under 
Topic 815,. then i t would be marked to fair value through earnings, unless designated as a hedging 
instrument in certain types of hedging relationships. Otherwise, the guidance in this Section would 
apply. Some long-term power sales contracts that meet the definition of a derivative may qualify 
for the normal purchases and normal sales scope exception contained in paragraph 8^15-10-15-17 
fb). In which case the long-term power sales contract would be accounted for under this Section . 

9 8 0 - 6 0 5 - 2 5 - 1 5 Long-term power sales contracts that are accounted for as derivatives may 
possibly qualify as hedging instruments in a l l - in -one hedges. The guidance in Section 815-10-55 
may be relevant. 

9 8 0 - 6 0 5 - 2 5 - 1 6 For a discussion of issues involved In accounting for derivative contracts held for 
trading purposes and contracts involved in energy trading and risk management activities, see 
paragraph 815-10-45-9. 

> > Contracts Containing Both Fixed and Variable Pricing Terms 

9 8 0 - 6 0 5 - 2 5 - 1 7 The following addresses a power sales contract that has both fixed and variable-
based pricing (based on market prices, actual avoided costs, or formula-based pricing 
arrangements) terms, where the variable-based pricing does not determine or limit the total 
billings under the contract. I t is limited to variable price arrangements in which the rate is at least 
equal to expected costs. The guidance only addresses the revenue recognition associated with the 
energy component of these long-term power sales contracts. 

9 8 0 - 6 0 5 - 2 5 - 1 8 Long-term power sales contracts that have both fixed and variable pricing terms 
shall be bifurcated and accounted for as follows: 

a. The revenue associated with the fixed or scheduled price period of the contract shall be 
recognized in accordance with paragraphs 980-605-25-11 through 25-12 (that is, the lesser of 
the amount billable under the contract or an amount determined by the kilowatt hours made 
available during the period multiplied by the estimated average revenue per kilowatt hour over 
the term of the contract). 

1 7 
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b. The revenue associated with the variable price period of the contract shall be recognized as 
billed. In accordance with the provisions of the contract for that period. 

If the contractual terms during the separate fixed and variable portions of the contract are not , 
representative ofthe expected market rates at the inception ofthe contract, the revenue 
associated with the entire contract shall be recognized in accordance with paragraphs 980-605-25-
11 through 25-12. 
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FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION 

This report made by the registrants contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 21E of the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Many forward-looking statements appear in "Item 7—Management's Financial 
Discussion and Analysis," but there are others throughout this document, which may be identified by words such as 
"expect," "anticipate," "intend," "plan," "believe," "will," "should," "could," "would," "project," "continue," and 
similar expressions, and include statements reflecting future results or guidance and statements of outlook. These 
matters are subject to risks and uncertainties such as those below and as further described in our Risk Factors that 
could cause actual results to differ materially from those projected. Forward-looking statements in this document 
speak only as of the date of this document. Except to the extent required by applicable law, we undertake no 
obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statement. Among the factors that could cause actual results to 
differ materially from those in the forward-looking statements are: 

• The economic climate and growth in, or contraction within, our service territory and changes in market 
demand and demographic pattems. 

• Inflationary or deflationary interest rate trends. 
• Volatility in the financial markets, particularly developments affecting the availability of capital on 

reasonable terms and developments impairing our ability to finance new capital projects and refinance 
existing debt at attractive rates. 

• The availability and cost of funds to finance working capital and capital needs, particularly during periods 
when the time lag between incurring costs and recovery is long and the costs are material. 

• Electric load, customer growth and Ihe impact of retail competition, particularly in Ohio. 
• Weather conditions, including storms, and our ability to recover significant storm restoration costs through 

applicable rate mechanisms. 
• Available sources and costs of, and transportation for, fuels and the creditworthiness and performance of 

fuel suppliers and transporters. 
• Availability of necessary generating capacity and the performance of our generating plants. 
• Our ability to resolve I&M's Donald C. Cook Nuclear Plant Unit 1 restoration and outage-related issues 

through warranty, insurance and the regulatory process. 
• Our ability to recover regulatory assets and stranded costs in connection with deregulation. 
• Our ability lo recover increases in fuel and other energy costs through regulated or competitive electric 

rates. 
• Our ability to build or acquire generating capacity, including the Turk Plant, and h-ansmission line 

facilities (including our ability to obtain any necessary regulatory approvals and permits) when needed at 
acceptable prices and terms and to recover those costs (including the costs of projects that are cancelled) 
through applicable rate cases or competitive rates. 

• New legislation, litigation and government regulation, including oversight of energy commodity trading 
and new or heightened requirements for reduced emissions of sulfur, nitrogen, mercury, carbon, soot or 
particulate matter and other substances or additional regulation of fly ash and similar combustion products 
that could impact the continued operation and cost recovery of our plants. 

• Timing and resolution of pending and future rate cases, negotiations and other regulatory decisions 
(including rate or other recovery of new investments in generation, distribution and transmission service 
and environmental compliance). 

• Resolution of litigation. 
• Our ability to constrain operation and maintenance costs. 
• Our ability lo develop and execute a strategy based on a view regarding prices of electricity, natural gas 

and other energy-related commodities. 
• Changes in the creditworthiness of the counterparties with whom we have contractual artangements. 

including participants in the energy trading market. 
• Actions of rating agencies, including changes in the ratings of debt. 
• Volatility and changes in markets for electricity, natural gas, coal, nuclear fuel and other energy-related 

commodities. 
• Changes in utility regulation, including the implementation of ESPs and related regulation in Ohio and the 

allocation of costs within regional transmission organizations, including PJM and SPP. 
• Accounting pronouncements periodically issued by accounting standard-setting bodies. 



SWEPCO also owns and operates a lignite coal mining operation. In addition to its AEP System 
interconnections, SWEPCo is interconnected with Cleco Corp., Empire District Electric Co., Entergy Corp. and 
Oklahoma Gas & Electric Co. SWEPCo is a member of SPP. 

TCC (organized in Texas in 1945) is engaged in the transmission and distribution of electric power to 
approximately 775,000 retail customers through REPs in southern Texas. TCC has sold all of its generation 
assets. At December 31, 2010, TCC had 1,006 employees. Among the principal industries served by TCC are 
chemical and petroleum refining, chemicals and allied products, oil and gas extraction, food processing, metal 
refining, plastics, and machinery equipment. In addition to its AEP System interconnections, TCC is a member 
ofERCOT. 

TNC (organized in Texas in 1927) is engaged in the transmission and distribution of electric power to 
approximately 186,000 retail customers through REP^ in west and central Texas. TNC's generating capacity has 
been transferred to an affiliate at TNC's cost pursuant to an agreement effective through 2027. At December 31, 
2010, TNC had 319 employees. Among the principal industries served by TNC are petroleum refining, 
agriculture and the manufacturing or processing of cotton seed products, oil products, precision and consumer 
metal products, meat products and gypsum products. The territory served by TNC also includes several military 
installations and cortectional facilities. In addition to its AEP System interconnections, TNC is a member of 
ERCOT. 

WPCo (organized in West Virginia in 1883 and reincorporated in 1911) provides electric service to 
approximately 41,000 retail customers in northern West Virginia. WPCo does not own any generating facilities. 
WPCo is a member of PJM. It purchases electric power from OPCo for distribution to its customers. At 
December 31. 2010, WPCo had 52 employees. 

AEGCo (organized in Ohio in 1982) is an electric generating company. AEGCo sells power at wholesale to 
I&M, CSPCo and KPCo. AEGCo has no employees. 

SERVICE COMPANY SUBSIDIARY 

AEP also owns a service company subsidiary, AEPSC. AEPSC provides accounting, administrative, 
Information systems, engineering, financial, legal, maintenance and other services at cost to the AEP affiliated 
companies. The executive officers of AEP and certain of its public utility subsidiaries are employees of AEPSC. At 
December 31,2010. AEPSC had 5.132 employees. 



Power generated by or allocated or provided under the Interconnection Agreement or CSW Operating 
Agreement to any public utility subsidiary is primarily sold to customers by such public utility subsidiary at rates 
approved by the public utility commission in the jurisdiction of sale. See Regulation — Rates under Item I, Utility 
Operations. 

Under both the Interconnection Agreement and CSW Operating Agreement, power that is not needed to 
serve the native load of our public urility subsidiaries is sold in the wholesale market by AEPSC on behalf of those 
subsidiaries. See Risk Management and Trading, below, for a discussion of the trading and marketing of such 
power. 

AEP's System Integration Agreement provides for the integration and coordination of AEP's East 
companies, PSO and SWEPCo. This includes joint dispatch of generation within the AEP System and the 
distribution, between the two zones, of costs and benefits associated with the transfers of power between the two 
zones (including sales to third parties and risk management and trading activities). It is designed to function as an 
umbrella agreement in addition to the Interconnection Agreement and the CSW Operating Agreemenl, each of 
which controls the distribution of costs and benefits for activities within each zone. 

Risk Management and Trading 

As agent for AEP's public utility subsidiaries, AEPSC sells excess power into the market and engages in 
power, natural gas, coal and emissions allowances risk management and trading activities focused in regions in 
which AEP traditionally operates and in adjacent regions. These activities primarily involve the purchase and sale of 
electricity (and to a lesser extent, natural gas, coal and emissions allowances) under physical forward contracts at 
fixed and variable prices. These contracts include physical transactions, over-the-counter swaps and exchange-
traded futures and options. The majority of physical forward contracts are typically settled by netting into offsetting 
contracts. These transactions are executed with numerous counterparties or on exchanges. Counterparties and 
exchanges may require cash or cash related instruments to be deposited on these transactions as margin against open 
positions. Asof December 31, 2010, counterparties have posted approximately $28 million in cash, cash equivalents 
or letters of credit wilh AEPSC for the benefit of AEP's public utility subsidiaries (while, as of that date, AEP's 
public utility subsidiaries had posted approximately $172 million with counterparties and exchanges). Since open 
trading contracts are valued based on market prices of various commodities, exposures change daily. See 
Management'.s Financial Discussion and Analysis, included in the 2010 Annual Reports, under the heading entitled 
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Risk Management Activities for additional information. 

Fuel Supply 

The following table shows the sources of fuel used by the AEP System: 

Coal and Lignite 
Natural Gas 
Nuclear 
Hydroelectric and other 

2008 
86^ 
6% 
8% 
<\% 

2009 
88% 
6% 
5% 
\% 

2010 
82% 
8% 
9% 

<\% 

Price increases in one or more fuel sources relative to other fuels may result in increased use of other fuels. 
Variations in the generation of nuclear power are primarily related to a 2008 forced outage caused by a low pressure 
turbine blade failure event. The unit returned to service in December 2009. 

Coal and Lignite: AEP's public utility subsidiaries procure coal and lignite under a combination of 
purchasing arrangements including long-term contracts, affiliate operations and spot agreements with various 
producers and coal trading firms. Electric demand experienced a slight increase in 2010 which resulted in a slight 
increase in coal and lignite tons consumed. In response to continued lower consumption rates al certain locations 
during 2010, AEP continued to work with coal suppliers to better match deliveries with consumption and minimize 
the impact on fuel inventory costs, carrying costs and cash. System wide, inventory levels were reduced by 11 days 
in 2010. 
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FERC 

Under the FPA, the FERC regulates rates for interstate power sales at wholesale, transmission of electric 
power, accounting and other matters, including construction and operation of hydroelectric projects. The FERC 
regulations require AEP to provide open access transmission service at FERC-approved rates. The FERC also 
regulates unbundled transmission service to retail customers. The FERC also regulates the sale of power for resale 
in interstate commerce by (i) approving contracts for wholesale sales to municipal and cooperative utilities and (ii) 
granting authority to public utilities to sell power at wholesale at market-based rates upon a showing that the seller 
lacks the ability to improperly influence market prices. Except for wholesale power that AEP delivers within its 
control area of the SPP, AEP has market-rate authority from the FERC, under which much of its wholesale 
marketing activity takes place. The FERC requires each public utility that owns or controls interstate transnussion 
facilities to, directly or through an RTO, file an open access network and point-to-point transmission tariff that 
offers services comparable to the utility's own uses of its transmission system. The FERC also requires all 
transmitting utilities, directly or through an RTO, to establish an OASIS, which electronically posts transmission 
information such as available capacity and prices, and requires utilities to comply with Standards of Conduct that 
prohibit utilities' transmission employees from providing non-public transmission infonnation to the utility's 
marketing employees. 

The FERC oversees RTOs, entities created to operate, plan and control utility transmission assets. Order 
2000 also prescribes certain characteristics and functions of acceptable RTO proposals. The AEP East Companies 
are members of PJM. SWEPCo and PSO are members of SPP. 

The FERC has jurisdiction over the issuances of securities of most of our public utility subsidiaries, the 
acquisition of securities of urilities, the acquisition or sale of certain utility assets, and mergers with another electric 
utility or holding company. In addirion, both the raRC and state regulators are permitted to review the books and 
records of any company within a holding company system. EPACT gives the FERC limited "backstop" 
transmission siting authority as well as increased utility merger oversight. 

COMPETITION 

Under current Ohio legislation, electric generation is sold in a competitive market in Ohio, and our native 
load customers in Ohio have the ability to switch to altemative suppliers for their electric generalion 
service. Comperitive power suppliers are targeting retail customers by offering alternative generation service. A 
growing number of CSPCo's commercial retail customers have switched to alternative generation providers while 
additional Ohio customers have provided notice of their intent to switch. In 2010, CSPCo lost about 3% of its total 
load due to customer switching. These evolving market conditions will continue to impact CSPCo's results of 
operations. To date, OPCo's customer losses have been insignificant. In February 2010, the PUCO granted a retail 
supply subsidiary of AEP a certificate to operate as a competitive retail electric service provider in Ohio. 

The public utility subsidiaries of AEP, like the electric industry generally, face competirion in the sale of 
available power on a wholesale basis, primarily to other public utilities and power marketers. The Energy Policy Act 
of 1992 was designed, among other things, to foster competition in the wholesale market by creating a generation 
market with fewer bartiers to entry and mandating that all generators have equal access to transmission services. As 
a result, there are more generators able to participate in this market. The principal factors in competing for wholesale 
sales are price (including fuel costs), availability of capacity and power and reliability of service. 

AEP's public utility subsidiaries also compete with self-generation and with distributors of other energy 
sources, such as natural gas, fuel oil and coal, within their service areas. The primary factors in such competition are 
price, reliability of service and the capability of customers to utilize sources of energy other than electric power. 
With respect to competing generators and self-generation, the public utility subsidiaries of AEP believe that they 
generally maintain a favorable competitive position. With respect to alternative sources of energy, the public utility 
subsidiaries of AEP believe that the reliability of their service and the limited ability of customers to substitute other 
cost-effective sources for electric power place them in a favorable competitive position, even though their prices 
may be higher than the costs of some other sources of energy. 
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Our request for rate recovery in Ohio for distribution service may not be approved in its entirety. (Applies to 
AEP, CSPCo and OPCo) 

In January 2011, CSPCo and OPCo filed a notice of intent with the PUCO to file for an annual increase in 
distribution rates of $34 million and $59 million, respectively, either as individual companies, or, if their proposed 
merger is approved, as a single merged enrity. The increase is based upon an 11.15% retum on common equity lo 
be effective January 2012. If the PUCO denies all or part of the requested rate recovery, it could reduce future net 
income and cash flows. 

Our request for rate recovery in Ohio for generation service may not be approved in its entirety. (Applies to 
AEP, CSPCo and OPCo) 

In January 2011, CSPCo and OPCo filed an application with the PUCO to approve the new ESP that 
includes a standard service offer pricing for generation effective with the first billing cycle of January 2012 through 
the lastbillingcycleof May 2014. The requested increase in 2012 is $54 million and in 2013 is $106 million. If the 
PUCO denies alt or part of the requested rate recovery, it could reduce future net income and cash flows. 

Ohio may require us to refund revenue that we have collected. (Applies to AEP, CSPCo arjd OPCo) 

Ohio law requires that the PUCO determine on an annual basis if rate adjustments included in prior orders 
resulted in significantly excessive eamings. If the rate adjustments result in significantly excessive eamings, the 
excess amount could be returned to customers. In September 2010, CSPCo and OPCo filed their 2009 significantly 
excessive earnings filings with the PUCO. In January 2011, the PUCO ruled that CSPCo generated approximately 
$43 million in significantly excessive eamings during 2009. The ruling is subject to rehearing by the PUCO and 
could be appealed in the courts. If rehearing or a final appeal, if any, results in findings of additional significantly 
excessive eamings, then further amounts will be retumed to customers. CSPCo and OPCo must file their 2010 
significantly excessive earnings filings with the PUCO. If the PUCO determines that CSPCo's and/or OPCo's 2010 
eamings were significantly excessive, CSPCo and/or OPCo may be required to return a portion of their revenues to 
customers. 

Ohio may require us to refund fuel cc^ts that we have coUected. (Applies to OPCo) 

The PUCO selected an outside consultant to conduct an audit of recovery under the fuel adjustment clause 
for the period of January 2009 through December 2009. The audit report included a recommendation that the PUCO 
should review whether any proceeds from a 2008 coal contract settlement agreement which totaled $72 million 
should reduce OPCo's under-recovery balance. Of the total proceeds, approximately $58 million was recognized as 
a reduction to fuel expense prior to 2009 and $14 million reduced fuel expense in 2009 and 2010. If the PUCO 
orders any portion of the $58 million or other hiture adjustments be used to reduce the current year fuel adjustment 
clause deferral, it would reduce future net income and cash flows and impact financial condition. 

Ohio may require us to refund rider revenue that we have collected. (Applies to CSPCo and OPCo) 

The PUCO approved recovery of an Economic Development Rider (EDR) by CSPCo and OPCo. An 
intervenor in that proceeding has filed a notice of appeal of that award with the Supreme Court of Ohio. As of 
December 31, 2010, CSPCo and OPCo have incurred $38 million and $30 million, respectively, in EDR costs 
including carrying costs. If CSPCo and OPCo are not ultimately permitted to recover their deferrals it would reduce 
future net income and cash flows and impact financial condition. 
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We also own natural gas-fired facilities, which increases our exposure to market prices of natural gas. 
Natural gas prices tend to be more volatile than prices for other fuel sources. Our ability to make off-system sales at 
a profit is highly dependent on the price of natural gas. As the price of natural gas falls, other market participants 
that utilize natural gas-fired generation will be able to offer electricity at increasingly competitive prices relative to 
our off-system sales prices, so the margins we realize from sales will be lower and, on occasion, we may need to 
curtail operation of marginal plants. 

Prices for coal, natural gas and emission allowances have shown material upward and downward swings in 
the recent past. Changes in the cost of coal, emission allowances or natural gas and changes in the relationship 
between such costs and the market prices of power will affect our financial results. Since the prices we obtain for 
power may not change at the same rate as the change in coal, emission allowances or natural gas costs, we may be 
unable to pass on the changes in costs to our customers. 

In addition, actual power prices and fuel costs will differ from those assumed in financial projections used to 
value our trading and marketing transactions, and those differences may be material. As a result, our financial 
results may be diminished in the future as those transactions are marked to market. 

Risks Relating to State Restructuring 

Our customers have recently begun to select alternative electric generation service providers, as allowed by 
Ohio legislation. (Applies to AEP and CSPCo) 

Under curtent Ohio legislation, electric generation ts sold in a competitive market in Ohio, and our native 
load customers in Ohio have the ability to switch to altemative suppliers for their electric generation 
service. Competitive power suppliers are targeting retail customers by offering altemative generation service. A 
growing number of CSPCo's commercial retail customers have switched to altemative generation providers while 
additional Ohio customers have provided notice of their intent to switch. In 2010, CSPCo lost about 3% of its total 
load due to customer switching. To date, OPCo's losses have not been significant. These evolving market 
conditions will continue to impact CSPCo's results of operations. 

There is uncertainty as to our recovery of stranded costs resulting from industry restructuring in Texas. 
(Applies to AEP.) 

Restructuring legislation in Texas required utilities with stranded costs to use market-based methods to 
value certain generating assets for determining stranded costs. We elected to use the sale of assets method to 
determine the market value of TCC's generation assets for stranded cost purposes. In general terms, the amount of 
stranded costs under this market valuation methodology is the amount by which the book value of generating assets, 
including regulatory assets and liabilities that were not securitized, exceeds the market value of the generation 
assets, as measured by the net proceeds from the sale of the assets. In May 2005, TCC filed its stranded cost 
quantification application with the PUCT seeking recovery of $2.4 billion of net stranded generation costs and other 
recoverable true-up items. A final order was issued in April 2006. In the final order, the PUCT determined TCC's 
net stranded generation costs and other recoverable true-up items to be approximately $1,475 billion. We have 
appealed the PUCT's final order seeking additional recovery consistent with the Texas Restructuring Legislation 
and related rules, other parties have appealed the PUCT's final order as unwarranted or too large. Management 
cannot predict the ulrimate outcome of any future court appeals or any future remanded PUCT proceeding. 

Collection of our revenues in Texas is concentrated in a limited number of REPs. (Applies lo AEP.) 

Our revenues from the distribution of electricity in the ERCOT area of Texas are collected from REPs that 
supply the electricity we distribute to their customers. Currently, we do business with approximately one hundred 
REPs. In 2010. TCC's largest customer accounted for 25% of its operating revenue and its second largest customer 
accounted for ]'i7c of its operating revenue; TNC's largest customer (a non-utility affiliate) accounted for 29% of its 
operating revenues and its second largest customer accounted for 16% of its operating revenues. Adverse economic 
conditions, structural problems in the Texas market or financial difficuUies of one or more REPs could impair the 
ability of these REPs to pay for our services or could cause them to delay such payments. We depend on these REPs 
for timely remittance of payments. Any delay or default in payment could adversely affect the timing and receipt of 
our cash flows and thereby have an adverse effect on our liquidity. 
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Parties with whom we have contracts may fail to perform their obligations, which could harm our results of 
operations. (Applies to each registrant.) 

We are exposed to the risk that counterparties that owe us money or power could breach their obligations. 
Should the counterparties to these arrangements fail to perform, we may be forced to enter into alternative hedging 
arrangements or honor underiying commitments at then-current market prices that may exceed our contractual 
prices, which would cause our financial results to be diminished and we might incur losses. Although our esrimates 
take into account the expected probability of default by a counterparty, our actual exposure to a default by a 
counterparty may be greater than the estimates predict. 

We rely on electric transmission facilities that we do not own or control. If these facilities do not provide us 
with adequate transmission capacity, we may not be able to deliver our wholesale electric power to the 
purchasers of our power. (Applies to each registrant.) 

We depend on transmission facilities owned and operated by other unaffiliated power companies to deliver 
the power we sell at wholesale. This dependence exposes us to a variety of risks. If transmission is disrupted, or 
transmission capacity is inadequate, we may not be able to sell and deliver our wholesale power. If a region's power 
transmission infrastructure is inadequate, our recovery of wholesale costs and profits may be limited. If restrictive 
transmission price regulation is imposed, the transmission companies may not have sufficient incentive to invest in 
expansion of transmission infrastructure. 

The FERC has issued electric transmission initiatives that require electric transmission services lo be offered 
unbundled from commodity sales. Although these initiatives are designed to encourage wholesale market 
transactions for electricity and gas, access to transmission systems may in fact nol be available if transmission 
capacity is insufficient because of physical constraints or because il is contractually unavailable. We also cannot 
predict whether transmission facilities will be expanded in specific markets to accommodate competitive access to 
those markets. 

We do not fully hedge against price changes in commodities. (Applies to each registrant.) 

We routinely enter into contracts to purchase and sell electricity, natural gas, coal and emission allowances 
as part of our power markering and energy and emission allowances trading operations, hi connection with these 
trading activities, we routinely enter into financial contracts, including futures and options, over-the counter options, 
financially-settled swaps and other derivative contracts. These activities expose us to risks from price movements. 
If the values of the financial contracts change in a manner we do not anticipate, it could harm oiir financial position 
or reduce the financial contribution of our trading operations. 

We manage our exposure by establishing risk limits and entering into contracts to offset some of our 
positions (i.e., to hedge our exposure to demand, market effects of weather and other changes in commodity prices). 
However, we do not always hedge the entire exposure of our operations fix)m commodity price volatility. To the 
extent we do not hedge against commodity price volarility, our results of operations and financial position may be 
improved or diminished based upon our success in the market. 

Financial derivatives reforms could increase (he liquidity needs and costs of our commercial trading 
operations. (Applies to each registrant.) 

In July 2010, federal legislation was enacted to reform financial markets that significantly alter how over-
the-counter (OTC) derivatives are regulated. The law increased regulatory oversight of OTC energy derivatives, 
including (1) requiring standardized OTC derivatives to be traded on registered exchanges regulated by the 
Commodity Futures Trading Commission (CFFC), (2) imposing new and potentially higher capital and margin 
requirements and (3) authorizing the establishment of overall volume and position limits. The law gives the CFFC 
authority to exempt end users of energy commodities which could reduce, but not eliminate, the applicability of 
these measures to us and other end users. These requirements could cause our OTC transactions lo be more costly 
and have an adverse effect on our liquidity due to additional capital requirements. In addition, as these reforms aim 
to standardize OTC products it could limit the effectiveness of our hedging programs because we would have less 
ability lo tailor OTC derivatives to match the precise risk we are seeking to manage. 
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Settlement with Bank of America 

In February 2011, we reached a settlement with BOA and paid $425 million in full settlement of all claims against 
us. We also received title to 55 BCF of cushion gas in the Bammel storage facility as part of the settlement. The 
effect of the settlement had no impact on our financial statements forthe year ended December 31, 2010. We do not 
expect the effect ofthe settlement to have a material impact on our 2011 consolidated net income. 

Ohio Customer Choice 

In our Ohio service territory, various competitive retail electric service (CRES) providers are targeting retail 
customers by offering alternative generation service. As of December 31, 2010, approximately 5,000 Ohio retail 
customers (primarily CSPCo customers) have switched to alternative CRES providers. As a result, in comparison to 
2009, we lost approximately $16 million of generation related gross margin in 2010 and currently forecast 
incremental lost margins of approximately $54 million for 2011, We anticipate recovery of a portion of this lost 
margin through off-system sales and our newly created CRES provider. Our CRES provider will target retail 
customers in Ohio, both within and outside of our retail service territory. 

Termination of AEP Power Pool 

Originally approved by the FERC in 1951 and subsequently amended in 1951, 1962, 1975 1979 (twice) and 1980, 
the Interconnection Agreement establishes the AEP Power Pool which permits the AEP East companies to pool their 
generation assets on a cost basis. In December 2010, each member gave notice to AEPSC and the other AEP Power 
Pool members of its decision to terminate the Interconnection Agreement effective January 1, 2014 or such other 
date approved by the FERC, subject to state regulatory input. It is unknown at this time whether the AEP Power 
Pool will be replaced by a new agreement among some or all ofthe members, whether individual companies will 
enter into bilateral or multi-party contracts with each other for power sales and purchases or asset transfers or if each 
company will choose to operate independently. The decision to terminate is subject to management's ongoing 
evaluation. The AEP Power Pool members may revoke their notices of termination. If members ofthe current AEP 
Power Pool experience decreases in revenues or increases in costs as a result ofthe termination of the AEP Power 
Pool and are unable to recover the change in revenues and costs through rates, prices or additional sales, it could 
have an adverse impact on future net income and cash flows. 

Transmission Agreement 

The AEP East companies are parties to a Transmission Agreement defining how they share the costs associated wilh 
their relative ownership of transmission assets. This sharing was based upon each company's MLR until the FERC 
approved a new Transmission Agreemenl effective November 1, 2010. The new Transmission Agreement will be 
phased-in for retail rates over periods of up to four years, adds KGPCo and WPCo as parties to the agreement and 
changes the allocation method. Our recovery mechanism for transmission costs is through our base rates. State 
regulatory phase-in of the new agreement may limit our ability to fully recover our transmission costs. 

Cook Plant Unit I Fire and Shutdown 

In September 2008, l&M shut down Cook Plant Unit 1 (Unit 1) due lo turbine vibrations, caused by blade failure, 
which resulted in a fire on the electric generator. Repair of the property damage and replacement of the turbine 
rotors and other equipment could cost up to approximately $395 million. Management believes that l&M should 
recover a significant portion of repair and replacement costs through the turbine vendor's warranty, insurance and 
the regulatory process. I&M repaired Unit 1 and it resumed operations in December 2009 at slightly reduced power. 
The Unit 1 rotors were repaired and reinstalled due to the extensive lead time required to manufacture and install 
new turbine rotors. As a result, the replacement of the repaired turbine rotors and other equipment is scheduled for 
the Unit 1 planned outage in the fall of 2011. If the ultimate costs ofthe incident are not covered by warranty, 
insurance or through the related regulatory process or if any future regulatory proceedings are adverse, it could have 
an adverse impact on net income, cash flows and financial condition. See "Cook Plant Unit I Fire and Shutdown" 
section of Note 6. 



2010 Compared to 2009 

Reconciliation of Year Ended December 31, 2009 to Year Ended December 31, 2010 
Income from Utility Operations Before Discontinued Operations and Extraordinary Loss 

(in millions) 

Year Ended December 31,2009 $ 1,329 

Changes In Gross Margin: 
Retail Margins 601 
Off-system Sales 53 
Transmission Revenues 15 
Other Revenues (257) 
Total Change in Gross Margin 412 

Total Expenses and Other: 
Other Operation and Maintenance (351) 
Depreciation and Amortization (37) 
Taxes Olher Than Income Taxes (60) 
Interest and Investment Income 5 
Carrying Costs Income 23 
Allowance for Equity Funds Used During Construction (5) 
Interest Expense (26) 
Equity Earnings of Unconsolidated Subsidiaries 8_ 

Total Expenses and Other (443) 

Income Tax Expense (97) 

Year Ended December 31,2010 $ 1,201 

The major components of the increase in Gross Margin, defined as revenues less the related direct cost of fuel, 
including consumption of chemicals and emissions allowances, and purchased power were as follows: 

• Retail Margins increased $601 million primarily due to the following: 
• Successful rate proceedings in our service territories which include: 

• A $138 million increase in the recovery of E&R costs in Virginia, costs related to the Transmission 
Rate Adjustment Clause in Virginia and construction financing costs in West Virginia. 

• A $49 million increase in the recovery of advanced metering costs in Texas. 
• A $43 million net rate increase for KPCo. 
• A $42 million net rate increase for SWEPCo. 
• A $39 million net rate increase for l&M. 
• A $37 million net rate increase for PSO. 
• A $14 million net rate increa.se in our other jurisdictions. 
• Forthe increases described above, $183 million of these increases relate lo riders/trackers which have 

corresponding increases in other expense items. 
• A $229 million increase in weather-related usage primarily due to a 60% increase in cooling degree days 

in our eastern service territory and 7% and 15% increases in heating degree days in our eastern and 
western service territories, respectively. 

• A $78 million increase due to higher fuel and purchased power costs recorded in 2009 related to the 
Cook Plant Unit I (Unit 1) shutdown. This increase was offset by a corresponding decrease in Other 
Revenues as discussed below. 

These increases were partially offset by: 
• A $43 million decrease due to a refund provision for the 2009 Significantly Excessive Eamings Test 

(SEET). 
• A $38 million decrease due to the termination of an l&M unit power agreemenl. 
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AEPSC conducts power, gas, coal and emission allowance risk management activities on CSPCo's behalf. CSPCo 
shares in the revenues and expenses associated with these risk management activities, as described in the preceding 
paragraph, with the other AEP East companies, PSO and SWEPCo. Power and gas risk management activities are 
allocated based on the existing power pool agreement and the SIA. CSPCo shares in coal and emission allowance 
risk management activities based on its proportion of fossil fuels burned by the AEP System. Risk management 
activities primarily involve the purchase and sale of electricity under physical forward contracts at fixed and 
variable prices and to a lesser extent gas, coal and emission allowances. The electricity, gas, coal and emission 
allowance contracts include physical transactions, OTC options and financially-settled swaps and exchange-traded 
futures and options. AEPSC settles the majority of the physical forward contracts by entering into offsetting 
contracts. 

To minimize the credit requirements and operating constraints when operating within PJM, the AEP East companies 
as well as KGPCo and WPCo, agreed to a netting of all payment obligations incurred by any of the AEP East 
companies against all balances due to the AEP East companies, and to hold PJM harmless from actions that any one 
or more AEP East companies may take with respect lo PJM. 

CSPCo is jointly and severally liable for activity conducted by AEPSC on behalf of the AEP East companies, PSO 
and SWEPCo related to purchase power and sale activity pursuant to the SIA. 

Ohio Customer Choice 

In CSPCo's service territory, various competitive retail electric service (CRES) providers are targeting retail 
customers by offering altemative generation service. As of December 31,2010, approximately 5,0(X) CSPCo retail 
customers have switched from CSPCo to altemative CRES providers. As a result, in comparison to 2(X}9, CSPCo 
lost approximately $16 million of generation related gross margin in 2010. Management currently forecasts 
incremental lost margins of approximately $53 million for 2011. Management anticipates recovery of a portion of 
this tost margin through oflf-system sales. 

Regulatory Activity 

2009-2011 ESP 

During 2009, the PUCO issued an order that modified and approved CSPCo's ESP which established rates through 
2011. The order also limited annual rate increases for CSPCo to 7% in 2009, 6% in 2010 and 6% in 2011. The 
order provided a FAC for the three-year period of the ESP. Several notices of appeal are outstanding al the Supreme 
Court of Ohio relating to significant issues in the determination of the approved ESP rates. In January 2011, the 
PUCO issued an order that determined that relevant CSPCo 2009 earnings were significantly excessive. As a result, 
the PUCO ordered CSPCo to refund $43 miUion of its eamings to customers, which was recorded as a revenue 
provision on CSPCo's December 2010 books. See "Ohio Electric Security Plan Rlings" section of Note 4. 

Proposed January 2012 - May 2014 ESP 

In January 2011, CSPCo filed an application with the PUCO to approve a new ESP that includes a standard service 
offer (SSO) pricing for generalion effective with the first billing cycle of January 2012 through the last billing cycle 
of May 2014. The SSO presents redesigned generation rates by customer class. Customer class rates individually 
vary, but on average, customers will experience net base generation increases of 1.4% in 2012 and 2.7% for the 
period January 2013 through May 2014. See "Ohio Electric Security Plan Filings" section of Nole 4. 

Litigation and Environmental Issues 

In the ordinary course of business, CSPCo is involved in employment, commercial, environmental and regulatory 
litigation. Since it is difficult lo predict the outcome of these proceedings, management cannot state what the 
eventual resolution will be or the timing and amount of any loss, fine or penalty may be. Management assesses the 
probability of loss for each contingency and accrues a liability for cases which have a probable likelihood of loss if 
the loss can be estimated. For details on regulatory proceedings and pending litigation, see Note 4 - Rate Matters 
and Note 6 - Commitments, Guarantees and Contingencies. Adverse results in these proceedings have the potential 
to materially affect net income, financial condition and cash flows. 
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I I 

NOTES TO FINANCIAt STATEMENTS (Ccitlinufsd) 

Account ing fo r ihe Effects o f Cost-Bused Regu/ution 

As a rate-regulated electric public ufility coinpuny, OPCo's llnanciai statements rellccL the aclipns of let^uhUors lliat 
retiLilt in the recognition of cerfiiiii revenues :uid cx|icnses in difTcrcut time peiiotl.s th;ni ciiterj^riscs that are nol 
rale-rcguhilcd. In accordance with accounting guidance for "Regulated OpCMdion.s.'' Or tx) records retjiilalory assets 
(defeiTcd expenses) and rcgtilatoiy liabilities (future revenue reductions or refunds) lo rcllecl the economic effects of 
regulation by matching expenses wilh dieir rcco\'ery through regulated revenues and income with its passage to 
customers through llie reduction of regulated revenues. Due lo the passage of legislation requiring resiructuring and a 
transition to customer choice and markef-bascd rates, OPCo disccnliniicd the applicalion of "RegulalotI Operations" 
accounting treatment for the generation portion of its business. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of these financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. These estimates include, but are not limited to, 
inventory valuation, allowance for doubtful accounts, long-lived asset impairment, unbilled electricity revenue, valuation 
of long-term energy contracts, the effects of regulation, long-lived asset recovery, the effecLs of contingencies and certain 
assumptions made in accounting for pension and postretirement benefits. The estimates and assumptions used are based 
upon management 's evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances as of the date of the financial statements. Actual 
results could ultimately differ from those estimates. 

Cash a n d Cash Equivalents 

Cash and Cash Equivalents on the Statement of Cash Flows include Cash, Working Fund and Temporary Cash 
Investments on the Comparative Balance Sheet wilh original maturities of three months or less. 

Supplementary Information 

Fo r the Year E n d e d December 3 1 , 
Cash Was Paid (Received) for; 

Interest (Net of Capitalized Amounts) 
Income Taxes (>let of Refunds) 

Noncash Acquisitions Under Capital Leases 
Noncash Acquisitions of Coal Land Rights 
At December 3 1 , 

Noncash Construction Expenditures Included in Accounts Payable 
Revenue Refund Included in Accounts Payable 

Special Deposits 

2009 2008 

(in thousa 

$ 121,937 
(62,704) 
2,383 

29,929 

$ 

ids) 

115,330 
100,430 
3,910 

41,600 

33,177 
62,045 

Special Deposits include funds held by trustees primarily for margin deposits for risk inanagcment activities and 
cnviromnental construction expenditures. 
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2009/Q4 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

2. KATE MATTERS 

OPCo is involved in rale and regulatory proceedings at the FF-RC and PUCO. Rate matters can have a inateria! effect on 
financial condiiion, net income and cash flows. OPCo's recent significant rale orders and pending rate Ulings are 
addressed in tliis note. 

Ohio Electric Security I'lan Filings 

The PUCO issued an order in March 2009 ihat modified and approved OPCo's ESP that established rates al the start of 
Ibc April 2009 billing cycle. The ESP is in effect through 2011. The order also limits rate increases for OPCo to 8% in 
2009, 7% in 2010 and 8% in 2011. Some rate coinponcnts and increases are exempt from these limitations. OPCo 
collected the 2009 annualized revenue increase over the last nine months of 2009. 

The order provides a FAC for the thrcc-ycar period of tlie ESP. The FAC increase will be phased in to avoid having the 
resultant rate increases exceed the ordered annual caps described above. The FAC increase is subject to quarterly 
truc-ups, annual accounting audits and prudence reviews. The order allows OPCo to defer any unrccovered FAC costs 
resulting from the annual caps and to accrue associated carrying charges at OPCo's weighted average cost of capital. The 
deferred FAC regulatory asset balance at the end of the three-year ESP period will be recovered through a 
non-bypassable surcharge over the period 2012 through 2018. 

Discussed below are the outstanding uncertainties related to the ESP order: 

The Ohio Consumers' Counsel filed a notice of appeal with the Supreme Court of Ohio rai.^ing several issues 
including the alleged retroactive rates, recovery of carrying charges on certain enviromuental investments, Provider 
of Last Resort (POLR) charges and the decision not to offset rates by off-system sales margins. 

The Industrial Energy Users-Ohio group filed a notice of appeal wilh the Supreme Court of Ohio challenging olher 

components ofthe ESP order including the POLR charge, the distribution riders for gridSMART^^ and cnlianced 
reliability, the PUCO's conclusion and supporting evaluation that the modified ESPs are more favorable than the 
expected results of a market rate offer, the unbundling ofthe fuel and non-fuel generation rate components, the scope 
and design ofthe fuel adjtjstment clause and tlie approval ofthe plan afler the i50-day statutory deadline. A decision 
from the Supreme Court of Ohio is still pending. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATFMENTS (Continued) 

OPCo's cost for contributions to the retirement savings plans was $7.6 million and $7.2 million for the years ended 
December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. 

UMJVA Benefits 

OPCo provides UMWA pension, health and welfare benefits for certain unionized mining employees, retirees and their 
survivors who meet eligibility requirements. UMWA trustees make fmal inteiprctive determinations with regard to all 
benefits. The pension benefits arc administered by UMWA trustees and contributions are made to their trust funds. The 
health and welfare benefits are administered by OPCo. Benefits arc paid from OPCo's general assets. Contributions and 
benefits paid were not material in 2009 and 2008. 

6. BUSINESS SEGMENTS 

OPCo has one reportable segment, an integrated electricity generation, transmission and distribution business. OPCo's 
other activities are insignificant. 

7. DERIVATIVES AND HEDGING 

OBJECTIVES FOR UTILIZATION OF DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS 

OPCo is exposed to certain market risks as a major power producer and marketer of wholesale electricity, coal and 
emission allowances. These risks include commodity price risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and lo a lesser extent foreign 
currency exchange risk. These risks represent the risk of loss that may impact OPCo due to changes in the underlying 
market prices or rates. These risks are managed using derivative instruments. 

STRATEGIES FOR UTILIZATION OF DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS TO ACHIEVE OBJECTIVES 

The strategy surrounding the use of derivative instruments focuses on managing risk exposures, future cash flows and 
creating value based on open trading positions by utilizing both economic and formal hedging strategies. To accomplish 
these objectives, AEPSC, on behalf of OPCo, primarily employs risk management contracts including physical forward 
purchase and sale contracts, financial forward purchase and sale contracts and financial swap instruments. Not all risk 
management contracts meet the definition of a derivative under the accounting guidance for "Derivatives and Hedging." 
Derivative risk management contracts elected normal under the normal purchases and normal sales scope exception are 
not subject to the requirements ofthis accounting guidance. 

AEPSC, on behalf of OPCo, enters into electricity, coal, natural gas, interest rate and to a lesser degree heating oil, 
gasoline, emission allowance and other commodity contracts to manage the risk associated with the energy business. 
AEPSC, on behalf of OPCo, enters into interest rate derivative contracts in order to manage the interest rate exposure 
associated with long-term commodity derivative positions. For disclosure purposes, such risks are grouped as 
"Commodity," as these risks are related to energy risk management activities. From time to time, AEPSC, on behalf of 
OPCo, also engages in risk management of interest rate risk associated with debt financing and foreign currency risk 
associated with fiiture purchase obligations denominated in foreign currencies. For disclosure purposes, these risks are 
grouped as "Interest Rate and Foreign Currency." The amount of risk taken is determined by the Commercial Operations 
and Finance groups in accordance with established risk management policies as approved by the Finance Committee of 
AEP's Board of Directors. 
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HOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cqntirmed) 

The following table represents the gross notional volume of outstanding derivative contracts as of December 31, 2009: 
U n i t of 

P r i m a r y R isk Exposu re 

Commodity: 
f'owcr 
Coal 
Nalural Gas 
iicating Uil and Gasoline 
Interest Rate 

Measure 

MWHs 
Tons 
MMBtus 
Gallons 
USD 

Volume 
(in thousands) 

112,745 
23,631 
10,539 

838 
S 13,487 

Cash F/ow Hedging Strategics 

AEPSC, on behalf of OPCo, enters into and designates as cash flow hedges certain derivative transactions for the 
purchase and sale of electricity, coal, heating oil and natural gas ("Commodity") in order to manage the variable price 
risk related to the forecasted purchase and sale of these commodities. Management closely monitors the potential 
impacts of commodity price changes and, where appropriate, enters into derivative transactions to protect profit margins 
for a portion of fiiture electricity sales and fuel or energy purchases. OPCo does not hedge all commodity price risk. 

OPCo's vehicle fleet is exposed to gasohne and diesel fuel price volatility. AEPSC, on behalf of OPCo, enters into 
financial gasoline and heating oil derivative contracts in order to mitigate price risk of future fuel purchases. For 
disclosure purposes, ihese contracts are included with other hedging activity as "Commodity." OPCo does not hedge all 
fuel price risk. 

AEPSC, on behalf of OPCo, enters into a variety of interest rate derivative transactions in order to manage interest rate 
risk exposure. Some interest rate derivative transactions effectively modify exposure to interest rate risk by converting a 
portion of floating-rate debt to a fixed rate. AEPSC, on behalf of OPCo, also enters into interest rate derivative contracts 
to manage interest rate exposure related to anticipated borrowings of fixed-rate debt. The anticipated fixed-rate debt 
offerings have a high probability of occurrence as the proceeds will be used to ftmd existing debt maturities and projected 
capital expenditures. OPCo does not hedge all interest rate exposure. 

At times, OPCo is exposed to foreign currency exchange rate risks primarily because some fixed assets are purchased 
from foreign suppliers. In accordance with AEP's risk management policy, AEPSC, on behalf of OPCo, may enter into 
foreign currency derivative transactions to protect against the risk of increased cash outflows resulting from a foreign 
currency's appreciation against the dollar. OPCo does not hedge all foreign currency exposure. 
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